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URNED 7TH UAL GENE EETING OF G-RID

No. G-RIDE/CS/AGM/24-25 Date: 30/01/2025

NOTICE TO THE MEMBERS

NOTICE is hereby given that the 7th Adjourned Annual General Meeting of the members
of Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited (G-RIDE) (which had
been convened on 23rd day of December, 2024 at 12.00 Hours was adjourned) will be
held on 30t day of January, 2025 at 04:00 PM at the Committee Room of Industries and
Mines Department, Block No. 5, 3 floor, Udhyog Bhavan, Gandhinagar, Gujarat to
transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. Toreceive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement (Standalone
& Consolidated) of the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March,
2024 together with the reports of Board of Directors, Auditor and C&AG
thereon.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements (standalone & Consolidated) of the
Company for the year ended on 315t March, 2024 i.e. Balance Sheet as at 315t March 2024,
Statement of Profit and Loss Account for the period from 01/04/2023 to 31/03/2024
along with schedules thereto, Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts
together with Board’s Report, Statutory Auditors Report and Report of Comptroller and
Auditor General of India, be and are hereby considered and adopted”

NOTES:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and
vote on a poll instead of himself and the proxy need not be a member of the Company.
Proxies in order to be effective must be received by the company not later than forty-
eight (48) hours before the meeting. Proxies submitted on behalf of limited
companies, societies, etc,, must be supported by appropriate resolutions/ authority,
as applicable.

2. Members are requested to bring to the meeting their attendance slips duly
completed and signed mentioning therein details.

3. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher
in the order of names will be entitled to vote at the Meeting.

4. Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and in the
Explanatory Statements are open for inspection by the Members at the Company’s
Registered Office on all working days during business hours up to the date of the
Meeting.
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5. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend
the Meeting pursuant to section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 are requested to
send to the Company, a certified copy of the relevant Board Resolution together
with respective specimen signatures authorizing their representative(s) to attend
and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

6. Members seeking any information with regard to the Accounts are requested to
write to the Company at an early date, so as to enable the Management to keep the
information ready at the meeting.

74 An explanation to above items (1 & 2) (Annexure-A) is appended herewith as the
part of a notice.
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ENDED ON 3157 024 TO WITH THE BOARD'S REPORTS, AUD
AND C&AG THEREON:

As per provisions of the section 129 and 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, Audited
Financial Statements, Auditors report along with Board Report for the F.Y. 2022-23 is
required to be placed before the shareholders for adoption.

The Accounts of the 7th Financial Year of the Company i.e., for F.Y. 23-24 has been audited
by Statutory Auditors M/s Kantilal Patel & Co, Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad.
Financial Statements (Standalone & Consolidated) for the F.Y. 23-24 were approved by
the Board vide resolution no. 28/10, dated 26th September 2024. Thereafter, the audited
accounts along with the report of the Statutory Auditors were submitted to C&AG and
C&AG has completed their Supplementary Audit on (Standalone & Consolidated)
Financial Statements of G-RIDE for the F.Y. 2023-24. Now, G-RIDE has received NIL
Comment certificate vide letter dated 03.01.2025.

The Accounts are to be approved by the Shareholders along with Board’s Report,
Statutory Auditors’ Report & Report of C&AG. The Accounts also shall be filed with the
Registrar of Companies and to be placed before the floor of assembly.

Therefore, the members are requested to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or
without modification, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution.

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements (standalone & Consolidated) of the
Company for the year ended on 315t March, 2024 i.e., Balance Sheet as at 315t March 2024,
Statement of Profit and Loss Account for the period from 01/04/2023 to 31/03/2024
along with schedules thereto, Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts
together with Board’s Report, Statutory Auditors Report and Report of Comptroller and
Auditor General of India, be and are hereby considered and adopted”

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of Gujarat Rail
Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited

Date: 30/01/2025 -Sd-
Place: Gandhinagar Director (Project & Planning)
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TICE OF THE 7™ ANNUAL GENERA F G-RID

No. G-RIDE/CS/AGM/24-25 Date: 13/12/2024
NOTICE TO THE MEMBERS

NOTICE is hereby given that the 7th Annual General Meeting of the members of Gujarat
Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited (G-RIDE) will be held on 23rd day
of December, 2024 at 12.00 Hours at the Committee Room of Industries and Mines
Department, Block No. 5, 3 floor, Udhyog Bhavan, Gandhinagar, Gujarat to transact the
following business:

RDINARY

2. Toreceive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement (Standalone
& Consolidated) of the Company for the financial year ended on 315t March,
2024 together with the reports of Board of Directors, Auditor and C&AG
thereon.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements (standalone & Consolidated)
of the Company for the year ended on 315t March, 2024 i.e. Balance Sheet as at 31
March 2024, Statement of Profit and Loss Account for the period from
01/04/2023 to 31/03/2024 along with schedules thereto, Significant Accounting
Policies and Notes to Accounts together with Board’s Report, Statutory Auditors
Report and Report of Comptroller and Auditor General of India, be and are hereby
considered and adopted”

3. To consider & fix remuneration of Statutory Auditors for the Company for
F.Y. 2024-25 appointed/to be appointed by C&AG.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution

“RESOLVED THAT the shareholders takes note of appointment of M/s Kantilal
Patel & Co., Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad as Statutory Auditors appointed
by C&AG for the F.Y. 2024-25 vide their letter no. CA.V/COY/GUJARAT,GRIDE
(1)/675 dated 21/09/2024 and that approval be and is hereby accorded to fix
remuneration of Rs. 1,00,000 plus GST to Statutory Auditors for the F.Y. 2024-25,
as recommended by the Board & Audit Committee.”

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of Gujarat Rail
Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited

Date: 13 /12/2024 -Sd-
Place: Gandhinagar Director (Project & Planning)
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NOTES:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and
vote on a poll instead of himself and the proxy need not be a member of the Company.
Proxies in order to be effective must be received by the company not later than forty-
eight (48) hours before the meeting. Proxies submitted on behalf of limited
companies, societies, etc, must be supported by appropriate resolutions/ authority,
as applicable.

2. Members are requested to bring to the meeting their attendance slips duly
completed and signed mentioning therein details.

3. Incase of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher
in the order of names will be entitled to vote at the Meeting.

4. Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and in the
Explanatory Statements are open for inspection by the Members at the Company’s
Registered Office on all working days during business hours up to the date of the
Meeting.

5. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend
the Meeting pursuant to section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 are requested to
send to the Company, a certified copy of the relevant Board Resolution together
with respective specimen signatures authorizing their representative(s) to attend
and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

6. Members seeking any information with regard to the Accounts are requested to
write to the Company at an early date, so as to enable the Management to keep the
information ready at the meeting.

7. An explanation to above items (1 & 2) (Annexure-A) is appended herewith as the
part of a notice.
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ITEMNO. 1:

EIVE OPT _THE AUDITE EME
(STANDALONE & CONSOLIDATED) OF THE COMPANY FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR
END ST 2024 TOGETHE THT 'S REPORTS, AUDIT
AND C&AG THEREON:

As per provisions of the section 129 and 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, Audited
Financial Statements, Auditors report along with Board Report for the F.Y. 2022-23 is
required to be placed before the shareholders for adoption.

The Accounts of the 7th Financial Year of the Company i.e., for F.Y. 23-24 has been audited
by Statutory Auditors M/s Kantilal Patel & Co, Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad.
Financial Statements (Standalone & Consolidated) for the F.Y. 23-24 were approved by
the Board vide resolution no. 28/10, dated 26th September, 2024. Thereafter, the audited
accounts along with the report of the Statutory Auditors were submitted to C&AG and
C&AG has completed their Supplementary Audit on (Standalone & Consolidated)
Financlal Statements of G-RIDE for the F.Y. 2023-24.

The Accounts are to be approved by the Shareholders along with Board’s Report,
Statutory Auditors’ Report & Report of C&AG. The Accounts also shall be filed with the
Registrar of Companies and to be placed before the floor of assembly.

Therefore, the members are requested to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or
without modification, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution.

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements (standalone & Consolidated) of the
Company for the year ended on 315t March, 2024 i.e,, Balance Sheet as at 315t March 2024,
Statement of Profit and Loss Account for the period from 01/04/2023 to 31/03/2024
along with schedules thereto, Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts
together with Board’s Report, Statutory Auditors Report and Report of Comptroller and
Auditor General of India, be and are hereby considered and adopted”

ITEMNO. 2:

2024-25:

As per the section 139(5) of The Companies Act, 2013, the appointment of Statutory
Auditors of the Government Company is to be made by the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India within 180 days from the commencement of the financial year. As per
section 142(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the remuneration of the Statutory Auditors
has to be decided by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

C&AG vide letter no. CA.V/COY/GUJARAT, GRIDE (1)/675 dated 21/09/2024 has
appointed M/s. Kantilal Patel & Co. Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad as Statutory
Auditors for the F.Y. 2024-25.

e 10 L T e
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The remuneration of Statutory Auditors is fixed at Rs. 2,00,000/- plus GST and actual out
of pocket expenditures for Statutory Audit by C&AG vide letter no.
CA.V/COY/GUJARAT,GRIDE(1)/675, dated 21/09/2024 for F.Y. 2024-25 by looking to
the nature of audit and complexities involved in audit.

Recommendation of the Audit Committee and the Board to finalize remuneration of the
Statutory Auditors for the F.Y. 2024-25 will be placed before the shareholders during the
meeting.

The members are requested to take appropriate decision in this regard and if thought fit,
to pass, with or without modification, the resolution set out at Item No. 2 as an Ordinary
Resolution.

“RESOLVED THAT the shareholders takes note of appointment of M/s Kantilal Patel &
Co, Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad as Statutory Auditors made by C&AG for the F.Y.
24-25 vide their letter no. CA.V/COY/GUJARAT,GRIDE(1)/675, dated 21/09/2024 and
that approval be and is hereby accorded to fix remuneration of Rs. 1,00,000/- plus GST
to Statutory Auditors for the F.Y. 24-25, as recommended by the Board & Audit

Committee.”
For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of Gujarat
Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited
Date: 13/12/2024 -Sd-
Place: Gandhinagar Director (Project & Planning)
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GUJARAT RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
(CIN: U74999G)2017SGC095040)
Registered Office:
7t floor, Block No. 6, Udhyog Bhavan,
Sector-11, Gandhinagar- 382017

BOARD'S REPORT
To,
The Members,
Your Director’s have pleasure in presenting 7th Annual Report on the Business and

Operations of the Company and the accounts for the Financial Year ended on March 31,
2024.

1. Financial summary or highlights/Performance of the Company (Standalone and
Consolidated)

The Board's Report is prepared based on the standalone & consolidated financial
statements of the Company.
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Standalone Consolidated Standalone Consolidated

Revenue from Operations 632.86 632.86 837.15 837.15
.Other Inc_ome - — . _535.99 53592 4‘8354: 48354‘
Total Revenue 1168.85 1168.85 1320.69 1320.69
Employee Benefits expenses, payment,
to contractors and consultants 250.97 250.97 247.61 247.61
Finance Cost | 180 ; 1.80 _ 3.37 L 3.37
Depreciation and amortization cost 48.14 48.14 5256 5256
Other expenses 56633 | 56633 | 79132 | 79132
'Total Expenses | 86724 | 86724 | 1094.86 1094.86
Share of net profit of equity accounted
investee - (1364.30) - (184.42)
Profit/Loss Before Tax 30161 | (1062.69) 22583 | 4141
'Tax Expenses
(a) Current Tax - 84.25 84.25 59.39 - 5939
(b) Deferred Tax (0300 | (030) | 356 356 B
Profit or Loss for the Year(+/-) 217.66 | (1146.64) | 162.88 (21.54)
iiarni_ngs/Loss_per_share (In INR) | - .
Basic/Diluted(+/-) 0.25 (1.29) 0.22 (0.03)

I i e e . 12 SNt s e S P
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2. (A) Work done by the Company till date

Following projects are executed by G-RIDE on single comprehensive EPC:

1) Katosan- Bechraji (29.65 Km):

o A total of around 2,864 rakes including loaded and unloaded has been dispatched
using project facilities.

o Upto November 2024, around 1,800 rakes (~3,70,0000 car) loaded and dispatched
using the Project Facilities.

o G-RIDE is assisting Project SPV in carrying out necessary maintenance of the Project
Facilities.

o Till November 2024, the project avoided 74,000 trucks congestion.

o Around 73,000 tons of Carbon emissions were saved due to the operation of the
project,

2) Rail Connectivity to Old Bedi port (2.57 Km)

o Project has been developed by G-RIDE Bedi Port Rail Limited (GBPRL), the project
SPV incorporated as a joint venture of GMB and G-RIDE. Project is operational
through JV model between GBPRL and Western Railways.

o Upto August 2024, around 242 rakes (~1 Million tonnes ) of coal is being loaded and
dispatched using the Project Facilities.

o G-RIDE is assisting Project SPV in carrying out necessary maintenance of the Project
Facilities.

o Within 2 years, the project has assisted in avoidance of around 37,000 truck
movements, contributing to traffic decongestion on NH and SH and substantial
reductions in carbon emissions.

Following projects are under execution by G-RIDE on single comprehensive EPC:

1) Bechraji-Chanasma-Ranuj (40 Km)

o Completed Ranuj yard remodeling with New Electronic Interlocking

o Engine rolling completed on 22-02-2024

o SAG inspection was completed on 10 June 2024.

o Bechraji- Ranuj Project Commissioned on 31 July 2024

o OHE line charging completed through Katosan TSS 3rd Bay and line has been
charged.

o Khambel TSS charging work under progress by GETCO and is expected to be
completed by January 2025.

2) Gati Shakti Multi Modal Cargo Terminal At Rafaleshwar

o Project SPV- G-RIDE Gati Shakti Cargo Terminal Limited (Morbi) incorporated as a
100% subsidiary of G-RIDE for the execution of the project.

o 27 Ha Land has been acquired by G-RIDE for the project. Further additional around
11 Ha land acquisition is under process.

o Formation and Platform Work Completed

o Yard Development and Station Building Works under progress

o Project Work is expected be completed by March 2025.
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293¢
o To obtain status of ICD, the application with the required DPR has been submitted to
CBIC for necessary actions.

3) Gati Shakti Multi Modal Cargo Terminal At Old Bedi Port
o Project proposed under Gati Shakti Multi- Modal Cargo Terminal (GCT) Policy.
95.8% of physical work and 95% of the Financial Progress has been completed.
1.89 KM Earthwork completed.
2.54 TKM Ballast Track Completed
2 Minor Bridge Completed, and 1 Major Bridge Completed
Platform and yard development work completed
Development of stacking area platform completed
Retaining Wali and Compound Wali completed
Station Building including S&T Building completed
Foundation OHE mast installation and contact catenary wire laying work completed.
Project is expected be completed by March 2025.

[0}
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3. Change in the nature of business, if any:
There is no Change in the nature of business of the Company.

4. Dividend:

Your directors do not recommend any dividend for the year ended on 31st March, 2024 since huge
funds will be required for development of railway infrastructure projects in Gujarat State.

5. Reserves:

During the Financial Year, your company has made profit of Rs. 217.66 Lakhs The entire amount
of profit is transferred under the head Reserve and Surplus Account.

6. Share Capital:

Authorized Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 500,00,00,000/- (Rupees five Hundred Crores)
divided into 50,00,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each and paid up share Capital of the
company is Rs. 99,00,00,000/- (Rupees Ninety Nine Crore Only) divided into 9,90,00,000
(Nine Crore Ninety Lakhs Only) Equity shares of Rs.10/- each as on 31st March, 2024.

7. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

From 01/04/2022 to till date of report, the changes that have been occurred in Board of
Directors as per orders of State Government and Ministry of Railways, Government of India from
time to time are as per ANNEXURE - A.

8. Particulars of Employees:

Your company is not a Listed Company and hence provisions of section 197 (12) and Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, regarding furnishing of
statement of particulars of employees is not applicable to the Company.

9. Meetings:

During the year, following Board Meetings were convened and held;

24% Board Meeting 15/06/2023 i
25t Board Meeting 24/11/2023
26th Board Meeting 102/03/2024

e e e S e o 14 e e e
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10.

11,

2K]ec.
The Meeting for the Quarter July-September 2023 could not be held due to change in
Government officials.

Committees:
a. Audit Committee:

The Board has reconstituted Audit Committee of the Board from time to time in view of
transfer/cessation/resignation of the Directors. The Audit Committee of the Company is
comprising of following members as on date of report.

a) Shri Karuna Nidhi Singh, IRTS (Nominee of MoR), Director, G-RIDE
b) Shri Kalpesh Vithlani, (Nominee of GoG), Director, G-RIDE
c) Smt. Ankita Christiyan (Nominee of GoG), Director, G-RIDE

During the year, following Audit Committee Meetings were convened and held;
13t Audit Committee Meeting | 24/11/2023
14t Audit Committee Meeting | 02/03/2024

During the year, all the recommendations of the Audit Committee were approved by the
Board.

b. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Board has constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee at its 26th Board
Meeting held on 02.03.2024 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Company is comprising of following members as on date of report.

(a) Shri Sandip Sagale, IAS Managing Director - G-RIDE (Nominee of GoG)

(b) Shri Santosh Kumar, IRSE, Director - G-RIDE (Nominee of MoR)

(c) Shri Kalpesh Vithlani, Director - G-RIDE (Nominee of GoG)

(d) Smt. Ankita Christiyan, Director - G-RIDE (Nominee of GoG)

¢. Internal Committee w.r.t Sexual Harassment

During the year under review, Board has constituted Internal Committee w.r.t Sexual
Harassment at its 27t Board Meeting held on 18.12.2020, comprising of following
members as on date of constitution;

a) Ms. Janki Patel, Admin & HR Executive, G-RIDE - Committee Member
b) Mr. S. N. Joshi, Sr. Manager (Accounts), G-RIDE -~ Committee Member
¢} Mrs. Ankita Christiyan, Financial Advisor, [ & M Dept - Committee Member

Board Evaluation:

Appointments of Board of Directors are made by the State Government and Ministry of
Railways, Government of India. As per the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of
India vide notification dated 05.06.2015, Government Companies are exempted from
the provision of sub-section 3 clause (p) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. Your
company being a Government Company, provision of Board Evaluation is not applicable.
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»
12. Auditors’ Report and C&AG Report: ' /
(A) Auditors’ Report:

M/s Kantilal Patel & Co, Chartered Accountant was appointed as Statutory Auditors of
the Company for the F.Y. 2023-24 by the C&AG.

Reply to qualification of Statutory Auditors Report:
There are no Qualification remarks from Statutory Auditor in their Audit Report.
(B) C&AGReport:

C&AG completed their Supplementary Audit and Certificate on Standalone &
Consolidated Financial Statements of G-RIDE for the F.Y. 2023-24 is awaited. If no
comments are received, the nil comments certificate will be attached as per section
134(4) of the Companies Act, 2013.

13. Internal Audit & Controls:

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls commensurate with the
size and nature of its business.

Internal Audit Reports given by M/s Shah & Dalal, Chartered Accountants, Internal
Auditors of the company are self-explanatory and hence do not call for any further
comments,

14. Risk Management Policy:
Risk management policy will be implemented as company has undertaken new project.
15. Extract of Annual Return:

As required under provision of Section 92(3) of The Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, an annual
return will be placed on website of the company. The weblink for the same is
https://www.gride.org.in/.

16. Material Changes and Commitments affecting Financial Position of the Company:

There are no material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position
of the company during the year under review, except that company is undertaking new
project.

17. Significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status of the Company:

During the year no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or
tribunals impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future:

18. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments under Section 186:

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered the provisions of Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are given in the Note No. 6 & 12 of the Notes to the Financial
Statements.

B e e 16 L SCE S



G = H I D E 7" Annual Report
19.

27}/
Details of Application made or proceeding pending under Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code 2016:

During the period under review, there were no applications made or proceedings pending
in the name of the company under the Insolvency Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

20. Details of difference between Valuation amount on one time settlement and
valuation while availing loan from Banks and Financial Institutions:

During the period under review, there has been no one time settlement of Loans taken
from Banks and Financial Institutions.

21. Particulars of Deposits

During the year under review, your company has not accepted any deposits falling within
the ambit of Section 73 of The Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of
Deposits) Rules, 2014.

22, Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties:

The particulars of every contract or arrangements entered into by the Company with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
during the 7t Financial Year is provided in prescribed form AoC-2 and attached as
ANNEXURE - B.

23. Salient features of the Financial Statements of Subsidiaries/Associate
companies/Joint Ventures:

Your Company does not have any subsidiary as on the end of financial year. Bahucharaji
Rail Corporation Limited is the Joint Venture with G-RIDE, Gujarat Industrial
Development Corporation and Maruti Suzuki India Limited and G-RIDE Bedi Port Rail
Limited is the Joint Venture with G-RIDE and Gujarat Maritime Board and G-RIDE
Haizra Rail Limited is the Joint Venture with G-RIDE, Gujarat Maritime Board, Adani
Tracks Management and Services Private Limited, Arcelor Mittal Nippon Steel India
Limited and Essar Bulk Terminal Limited. Statement containing salient features of the
financial statement of Subsidiaries/Associate companies/Joint Ventures Pursuant to
first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule
5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) in prescribed format AOC-1 is attached as
ANNEXURE - C.

24. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings
and Qutgo:

As the company’s operations do not involve any manufacturing or processing activities,
there are no significant particulars relating to conservation of energy, technology
absorption under the Companies (Disclosure of particulars in the Report of Board of
Directors) Rules, 1988.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo: NIL
25. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR):

The disclosures as per requirement of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 9 of Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is not
applicable to your company.
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Secretarial Audit Report given by the M/s. M. B. Soni & Co., Practicing Company
Secretaries as per requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 is placed as ANNEXURE -
D.

27. Director’s Responsibility Statement:

26. Secretarial Audit Report:

Your Directors state that—

(a) Inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently
and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial
year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

(c) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other irregularities;

(d) The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(e) The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively.

28. Transfer of Amounts to Investor Education and Protection Fund:

Your Company is not required to transfer any amounts to Investor Education and
Protection Fund.

29. Acknowledgements:

Your Directors express their warm wish to place on record their sincere appreciation to
the Co-operation extended by the Registrar of Companies, Comptroller & Auditor
General of India and Statutory Auditors. The Directors are also grateful to the
Government of Gujarat, Ministry of Railways, Government of India, GIDB, GMB, Bankers,
Officers and staff of the Company for their co-operation and look forward for their
continued support.

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors of
Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development
Corporation Limited (G-RIDE)

Date:- 2%/12/2024 Mambia Verma, IAS
Place:- Gandhinagar Chairman
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G-RIDE
ANNEXURE INDEX

Annexure Content

A Details of changes in Board of Directors & Key Managerial Personnel from
01/04/2024 to till date of report

B Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with related parties in Form AQC-2

C Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of

Subsidiaries/Associate companies/Joint Ventures in AOC-1

D Secretarial Audit _Re_port inMR-3
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G-HIDE

ANNEXURE - A

Details of changes in Board of Directors & Key Managerial Personnel from
01/04/2023 to till date of report:

Sr. | Name & DIN of Director Designation | Date of | Date of
No. N e Ny = _ Appointment | Cessation i
1. | ShriS.J. Haider, 1AS Chairman 26/04/2023 01/08/2024
B DIN: 02879522 B - -
2. Smt. Mamta Verma, IAS Chairman 29/08/2024 Continue
B DIN: 01854315 i | |
3. | Smt. Avantika Singh Aulakh, IAS Managing 22/11/2021 04/04/2023
— DIN: 07549438 Director =
4, Shri Gaurang Makwana, 1AS Managing 05/04/2023 10/09/2023
DIN not availed B ] Director ) B ]
5. Shri Sandip Sagale Managing 11/09/2023 Continue
DIN: 09002794 Director
6. Shri Kalpesh Vithlani Director 20/08/2020 Continue
DIN: 08687953 5 I ]
7. | Shri Uday Shankar Jha, IRTS Director 09/12/2022 07/03/2024
DIN: 09854571
8. Shri Karuna Nidhi Singh, IRTS Director 07/03/2024 Continue
DIN: 09470364
9. | Shri Santosh Kumar, IRSE Director 19/05/2017 16/07/2024
DIN: 07854179
10. | Shri Rajkumar Sundersingh Director (I/C) |26/09/2024 Continue
DIN: 10633196
11. | Smt. Ankita Christiyan Director 06/10/2020 Continue
| DIN: 09043461 .1 = Bl .
12. | ShriT. K. Pandey Director 15/07/2021 16/05/2023
| DIN: 09042599 . __ A
13. [ Shri Niraj Kumar, IRSE Director 17/05/2023 Continue
DIN not availed - - i I
14. | Shri Sanjay Gupta Director 30/11/2021 30/09/2024
DIN: 09393952
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ANNEXURE -B

FORM NO. AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule
8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the
company with related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso
thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.

Particulars = - | Details

Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship.

 Nature of contracts/ arrangements/_taséctlon
Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction NA
Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction -
(including the value, if any
Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangementsor | -
transactions’
Date of approval by the Board -

' Amount paid as advances, if any |E

Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting | NA
‘as required under first proviso to section 188

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

Particulars Details
Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship- -
With Holding Entity, Associate Entity and KMP
‘Nature of contracts/ arrangements/transaction -
Duration of the contracts /arrangements/transaction -
Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction ihcmi_rlg_ -
the value, if any
Date of approval by the Board =
Amount paid as advances, if any -

[PTO]

e i inin] 2] Jmis s o e i o L e e |
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Details of Related Party Transactions are as under;

(Amount in Lakhs)
Summary of transactions / Holding Entity Joint Venture Key management
Balances with Related personnel and
Parties relatives
Transactions during the For the year For the year For the year For the year For the For the
year ended March ended March ended March ended March year year ende:
31,2024 31,2023 31,2024 31,2023 ended March 31
March 31, 2023
2024
Loan given 0.00 - 14491.57 3000.00 0.00 -
Loan Received Back 0.00 14491.57 3000.00 0.00 -
Reim. of exp. 0.00 - 24.48 - 0.60 842
Remuneration/ Salary 0.00 - - N - 88.40 294
Tender Fees payable to
GBPRL 0.00 - - 0.25 -
Interest Expense 924,59 255.71 - - -
Interest Income 0.00 - 264.85 - -
Investment in Shares 1523.53 3276.47 1163.38 12320.52 - -
Share Application Money
Received 0.00 51.00 - .
firant from GOG 12000.00 21200.00 - - -
_Grant paid to project SPV - 11000.00 | . i
Fund for Investment in [V 0.00 800.00 - -
Bid processing fees collected
& transfer 0.00 - 0.23 0.08 -
Fees for Project Development
Services & Project
Management Consultancy
Fees - 452.48 244.95 - -
Balance as at year end Holding Entity Associate Entity/ Key management
Entities over which key personnel and
management personnel and their relatives
relatives are able to exercise
significant influence
For the year For the year For the year For the year For the For the
ended March ended March ended March ended March year year ende(
31,2024 31,2023 31,2024 31,2023 ended March 31,
March 31, | 2023
2024
Amount Receivable - - 112.54 220.46 -
Amount Payable 924.59 255.71 506.55 - -

Form shall be signed by the person who have signed the Board’s Report.

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors of

Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development
Corporation Limited (G-RIDE)

Date:- 23/12/2024
Place:- Gandhinagar

Mam rma, IAS
Chairman
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ANNEXURE - C
Form No.AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries
or associate companies or joint ventures

Part:: A+ Subsidiari

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)

1. | Name of the subsidiary

2. | The date since when subsidiaE was acquired

3. | Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if
different from the holding company’s reporting period
4. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last
date of the relevant financial year in the case of
foreign subsidiaries

5. | Share capital

6. | Reserves and surplus

7. | Total assets Information is NIL, as
L there are no
8. | Total Liabilities subsidiaries of G-
_ | RIDE during the year
9. | Investments 2023-24.

10.| Turnover

11.| Profit before taxation

12) Provision for taxation

13.| Profit after taxation

14. Prop(;sed Dividend

15.| Extent of sflareholding (in percentagé)

(PTO)

Py e e R e Y 7 i e e ey T
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Part - B : Associates and JointVentures

7" Annual Report

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to
Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

{(Amount in Lakhs)
Sr.| Name of Associates or Joint Bahucharaji G-RIDE Bedi G-RIDE
No.| Ventures Rail Port Rail Hazira Rail
Corporation Limited Limited
1 | Latest audited Balance SheetDate 31.03.2024 31.03.2024 31.03.2024
2 | Shares of Associate or Joint
Ventures held by the company on
the year end
No. of Shares 35,37,99,000 1,82,90,000 10,000
Shares Shares Shares
Amount of Investment in Associates Rs. Rs. Rs.
or Joint Venture 353,79,90,020// | 18,29,00,000/- 1,00,000/-
Extent of Holding (in percentage) *42.34 % **26.01% *%%100.00%
3 | Description of how thereis Holding shares | As per the terms | Holding shares
significant influence more than 20 % | of State GR No. more than 20
in Joint Venture | MIS/102021/U % in Joint
OR-4/124472/i- Venture
1 dated
01/07/2021 G-
Ride is required
to hold shares
more than 20%
in Joint Venture
4 | Reason why the associate/joint NA NA NA
venture is not consolidated
5 | Net worth attributable to NIL NIL NIL
shareholding as per latest audited
Balance Sheet
6 | Profit or Loss for the year (2653.30) (363.53) (1.32)
i. Considered in Consolidation (1270.82) (93.43) (0.05)
ii. Not Considered inConsolidation (1382.48) (270.01) NIL
7 | Names of associates or joint NA NA NA
ventures which are yet to
commence operations
8 | Names of associates or joint NA NA NA
ventures which have been
liquidated or sold during the year

B R e e e 24 e e e
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* In Current Financial Year 2023-24, as per the terms of share holders agreement (SHA)
G-Ride is required to subscribe share of BRCL to the extent of 45% only. Due to delay in
subscription by other shareholders of BRCL, G-Ride's holding in shares of BRCL was
decrease from 45% (As per SHA) to 42.34% as at 31st March 2024,G-Ride does not entitled
to enjoy control over BRCL, Since decisions on fundamental matters of BRCL can be taken
by obtaining Unanimous concurrence of all share holders & decision making for reserved
matters (As prescribed under Schedule 1 to SHA) which are fundamental to the BRCL's
operations shall require affirmative vote of each shareholder of BRCL. As all shareholders
of BRCL jointly controls the operations of BRCL, investment in BRCL is treated as
Investment in Joint venture.

**In Current Financial Year 2023-24, as per the terms of State GR No. MIS/102021/UOR-
4/124472/i-1 dated 01/07/2021 G-Ride is required to subscribe share of GBPRL to the
extent of 26% only which comes to Rs. 1829 Lakhs out of which GOG portion comes to Rs.
1029 Lakhs as cash equity model & MOR portion comes to Rs. 800 Lakhs as without cash
equity mode] (as Land). Out of GOG's Portion GOG has invested Rs. 1029 Lakhs in GBPRL
& Equity Share Contribution of Ministry of Railways (MOR) as Land through G-Ride is
completed as on balance sheet date.

**¥**In Current Financial Year 2023-24, as per the terms of State GR No. MIS/102021/UOR-
06/1-1 dated 03/07/2021 issued by Government of Gujarat, SPV is created for execution
and operation and Management of the New Gothangam (DFC Yard) to Hazira Last Mile Rail
Connectivity project in the state of Gujarat. G-Ride has invested Rs. 1 Lakhs as initial
subscription.

ko ek ok o
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Company Secretaries
C-507, THE FIRST, B/H KESHAV BAUG, VASTRAPUR,
AHMEDABAD-380015, GUJARAT, INDIA
E-MAIL: csmbsonig@gmail.com

FORM NO. MR-3

For the financial ycar ended on 31/03/2024
| Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited,
(CIN: U74999GJ2017SGC095040)

7th Floor, Block No. 6, Udhyog Bhavan,

Gandhinagar - 382017,

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
ihe adherence 1o good corporaie praciices by Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development
Corporation Limited (hereinafter referred as the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in
a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verilication of the Company’s books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company,
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we
hereby vepart that in ovr opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial
year ended on 317 March, 2024 (* Audit Period’) complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance- mechanism in
place to the extent, in the manner and subject 1o the reporting made hereinafier.

We further report that mainlenance of proper and updated Books, Papers, Minutes Books, filing
of Forms and Returns with applicable regulatory authorities and maintaining other records is
responsibility of management and Company. our responsibility is to verify the content of the
documents produced before us, make objective evaluation of the content in respect of compliance
and report thereon. We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms, and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31%' March, 2024
according to the provisions of:
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()
(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA’) and the rules made there
under (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period);

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under (Not
applicable to the Company during the audit period);

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under
to the extent to foreign direct investment, overseas direct investment, and external
commercial borrowings (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period);

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): - (Not applicablc to the Company during the audit
period)

(a) 'The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securitics and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

(d)  The Sccurities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme
and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and The Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations,
2014;

(¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Sccurities) Regulations, 2008;

(f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar 1o an Issue and Share
transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with client;

(8) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulation, 2009;

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy Back of Securities)
Regulations, 1998;
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(vi) Following are some other laws specifically to the Company:
(a) The Employee’s Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952;
(b) The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972;

(¢) The building and other Construction works (Regulation of Employment and
Condition ol Service) Act, 1996:;

(d) The building and other Construction worker’s Welfare Cess Act, 1996;
(e) The Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996.
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(1) Secretarial Standards issucd by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(i) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period).

We further report that no other specific law applicable to Company except as above as per
information provided by the Company.

During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, standards etc. mentioned above except only three Board
Meetimgs were conducted during the calendar year due to change in Government officials and the
gap between two Board Meetings held on 15th June, 2023 and 24" November, 2023 has exceeded
120 days. Further, the company has appointed one full time Company Secretary on out sourcing
basis.

We turther report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper
balance of Exccutive Directors, Non-Executive Directors. The change in the composition of the
Board of Directors took place during the period under review were carried ont in eompliance with
provisions of the Act. Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings,
agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarification on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. All the decisions were carried out
unanimously and recorded as part of the minutcs.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate
with the size and operation of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
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We further report that no audit has been conducted on the compliance with finance and taxation
laws as the same are subject to audit by the Statutory Auditor and Internal Auditor to the company
and their observations, if any, shall hold good for the purpose of this audit report.

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 17.12.2024

ACS No: 5
C.P. No: 21245

UDIN: A056167F003402785
PR No: 2206

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘ANNEXURE A’
and forms an integral part of this report.




' G T R I n E 7" Annual Report

Vi.B. SONI & CO.

Company Secretaries
C-507, THE FIRST, B/H KESHAY BAUG, VASTRAPUR, AHMEDABAD-380015
E-MAIL: csmbsoni@gmail.com

Annexure A

To,

The Members,

Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited,
(CIN: U74999GJ20178GC095040)

7th Floor, Block No. 6, Udhyog Bhavan,

Gandhinagar - 382017,

Subject: Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year 2023-24,

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

I, Maintcnance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Gujarat
Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited (hereinafter referred as the
Company). Our responsibility is 10 express an opinion on these Secretarial records based
on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate lo obtain
rcasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts arc reflected in secretarial
records. We believe that the process and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis
for our Opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of tinancial records and Books
of Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have issued our preliminary observations and the Company has
provided reply/ clarification to our satisfaction and the Company has assured to comply
the lapses, wherever occurred.

5. The Compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulation,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the
verification of records and procedure on test basis.
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6. The Secretarial audit report is neither an assurance to the future viability of the Company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs
of the Company.

7. Audit of the compliance with other laws has been undertaken based on the scope of audit
and the applicability of such laws as ascertained by the company and informed us.

8. We have relied on reports of Internal Audit, Regulatory Inspection/Audit to the extent
made available to us and the observations, if any, contained in such reports shall hold good
for the purpose of this audit report. Minor operational deviations that does not amounts to
breach of non-compliances for which penalties (if any,) have been levied by the stock
exchanges/depositories have not been treated as violation of any of the rcgulations, the
compliance which, have been subject to audit.

Place: Ahmedabad For M. B. Soni & Co.
Date: 17.12.2024 Company Secretaries

UDIN: A056167F003402785
PR No: 2206
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF
INDIA UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON
THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF GUJARAT RAIL
INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024.

The preparation of standalone financial statements of Gujarat Rail
Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024
in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013(Act) is the responsibility of the management of the company.
The statutory auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India
under Section 139(5) of the Act are responsible for expressing opinion on the
financial statements under Section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in
accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 14
October 2024.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have
conducted a supplementary audit of the standalone financial statements of Gujarat
Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited for the year ended 31 March
2024 under Section 143(6)(a) of the Act. This supplementary audit has been carried
out independently without access to the working papers of the statutory auditors and
is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and company personnel and
a selective examination of some of the accounting records.

On the basis of my supplementary audit nothing significant has come to my
knowledge which would give rise to any comment upon or supplement to Statutory
Auditors’ Report under Section 143(6)(b) of the Act.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of [ndia

(Bijit Kumar Mukherjee)
Principal Accountant General (Audit-1I), Gujarat

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: ©3 /01/2025
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF
INDIA UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) READ WITH SECTION 129 (4) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF GUJARAT RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements of Gujarat Rail
Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 in
accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies
Act, 2013(Act) is the responsibility of the management of the company. The statutory
auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section
139(5) read with Section 129(4) of the Act arc responsible for expressing opinion on
the financial statements under Section 143 read with Section 129(4) of the Act based
on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under
Section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit
Report dated 14 October 2024,

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a
supplementary audit of the consolidated financial statements of Gujarat Rail
Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024
under Section 143(6)(a) read with Section 129 (4) of the Act. We conducted a
supplementary audit of the financial statements of Gujarat Rail Infrastructure
Development Corporation Limited, Bahucharaji Rail Corporation Limited and G-Ride
Bedi Port Rail Limited. Further, Section 139(5) and 143 (6)(a) of the Act are not
applicable to G-Ride Hazira Rail Limited being private entity/ entity incorporated in
foreign country under the respective laws, for appointment of Statutory Auditor and
for conduct of supplementary audit, Accordingly, Comptroller and Auditor General of
India has neither appointed the Statutory Auditor nor conducted the supplementary
audit of these companies. This supplementary audit has been carried out independently
without access to the working papers of the statutory auditors and is limited primarily
to inquiries of the statutory auditors and company personncl and a selective
examination of some of the accounting records.

On the basis of my supplementary audit nothing significant has come to my
knowledge which would give rise to any comment upon or supplement to Statutory
Auditors’ Report under Section 143(6)(b) of the Act.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India

(Bijit Kumar Mukherjee)
Accountant General (Audit-IT), Gujarat

Place: Ahmedabad

Date: (3 January 2025
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the members of Guiarat Rail Infrastructure Devitlog t Carporation Limited

Repart on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development

Corporation Limited (the "Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of

Profit and Loss (inciuding Other Comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement

of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of

material accounting policles and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as ‘standalone financial

statements’).

in our opinion and ta the best of our information and according to the explanatians given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act”), in the manner
so required, and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended ("Ind AS")
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2024 and its profit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended an that

date.
Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent ot the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by ihe institute of Charte
of India (ICAIl) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics, We believe that the audit
evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone

financial statements.
Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other

information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to the Board's Report
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the members of Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited

but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The other information

is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditors’ report.

QOur opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information;
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance as required under SA 720 'The

Auditors’ responsibilities relating to other Information’. We have nothing ta report in this regard.
Management's responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act, with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, including total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS
specified under section 133 of the Act and the rules thereunder, as amended. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safequarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management or Board of Directors either intend to

liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process,
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To the members of Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Standalone Finaiicial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of nat detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i} of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controis system in piace and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's repert to the related disclosures in the
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion, Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of aur auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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To the members of Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, make it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work: and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified

misstatements in the standalone financial statements,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
Other Matter

The financials statement of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023 have been audited by the predecessor
auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements on November 24, 2023. Our report on

the financial statements is not modified in respect of this matter.
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ('the Order’), issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the 'Annexure A', a statement on the

matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.
2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and

belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it

appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended dealt

with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the members of Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Develaprient Corporation Limited

{d) In our apinion, the standaione financial statemenits comply with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of

the Act and the Rules thereunder, as amended.

(e) The Company being Government Company, provisions of sub section 2 of section 164 of the Companies
Act, 2013 are not applicable as per Notification No. G.S.R.463 (E) dated 5% June, 2015,

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internai financial controls over financial reporting of the Company with
reference to the financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate

~° TReport in 'Anriexure B' to this report. - —— -~

(g) The Campany being Government Company, provisions of sub section 16 of section 197 of the Companies
Act, 2013 are not applicable as per Notification No. G.S.R. 463(E) dated 5th June, 2015 of Ministry of

Corporate Affairs.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the auditor's report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according

to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigation which would have impact on its standalone financial

statements.

(i) The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, tor

material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts.

(iii) The Company was not required to transfer any amount to the Investor Education and Protection Fund

during the year.

(iv) (3) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are
material either individually or in aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in
any other person(s) or enlity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the lntermeaiary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the

like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the members of Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which
are material either individually or in aggregate) have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf

of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ji) of Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,

2014, as provided in (a) and {(b) above, contain any material misstatement.

(v) The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year, and hence, reporting under sub-

clause (f) of Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, is not applicable.

(vi) Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting software
for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software, Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across

any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

3. In terms of Section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in 'Annexure C' a statement on directions

issued under the aforesaid section by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

For Kantilal Patel & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 104744W

Mayank S. Shah
Partner
Membership No.: 044922

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: October 14, 2024

UDIN: 24044 322 BKEJU 2 4359
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Standalone Financial Statements of
Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on other iegal and regulatory requirements’ section of our report of even date
to the members of Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books of

accounts and the records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

<=

any‘s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

@@ (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situatinn of Property, Plant and Equipment and the relevant details of right-of-use assets.
(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a program of physical verification of Property, Plant and Equipment, so as to cover all the
assets every year which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature
of its assets. Pursuant to the program, Property, Plant and Equipment due for verification during the year were
physically verified by the management during the year. According to the information and explanations given
ta us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(00 Based on our examination of the lease agreement(s) for assets on lease provided to us, we report that, the
agreement in respect of immovable properties, disclosed in the standalone financial statements included
under Property, Plant and Equipment are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

{d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use assets) and
intangible assets during the year

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31,
2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in
2016) and rules made thereunder.

(i) (@) The Company does not have any inventory during the year and hence, reparting under clause 3(ii)(a) of the
Order is not applicable.

{b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, at
any point of time during the year, [roi banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets
and hence, reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(i)  The details required to be indicated as per clause 3(iii) of the Order, are as under;
(a) During the year the Company has provided advances in the nature of loans to companies, Limited Liability

Partnerships or other parties as below:
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(T in Lakhs)

Particulars Advance in the nature of Loan

Aggregate amount granted during the year

Joint ventures 14491.57

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above

Joint ventures =

(b) The terms and conditions of the grant of the advance in the nature of loan, during the year are, in our opinion,
prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company's interest.

(c) In respect of advances in the nature of loan granted, the schedule of repayment of principal has not been
stipulated and repayable on demand and the parties are regular in payment of interest. Hence, we are unable
to make a specific comment on the regularity of repayment of principal.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, there is na overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect of loans given.

{e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, there is no loan given falling due during the year, which has been renewed or extended or
fresh loans given to settle the averdues of existing loans given to the same party.

(f) Below mentioned loans and advance in the nature of loan granted by the Company are repayable on demand.

(Amount in ¥ lakhs)

Particulars All Parties Pr ters d Parties

Aggregate amount of loans/advances in nature of loans

Repayable on Demand (A) 14491,57 - 1449157

Agreement does not specify any terms or period of . - B
repayment (B)

Total (A+B) 14491.57 - 14491.57
Percentage of loans/ advances in nature of loans to the total | 100% - 100%
loans

(iv)  The Company has complied with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant of loans,
making investments and providing guarantees and securities, as applicable.

(v)  The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(vi)  To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost

records under clause 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the operations of the Company.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Standalone Financial Statements of
Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited -

(viiy  In respect of statutory dues:

(a) Inour opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues including
Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, duty of customs, cess and
any other material statutory dues, as applicable, to the appropriate authorities.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees'
state insurance, income-tax, duty of customs, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, in arrears
as at March 31, 2024 [or a period of inore than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) Based on the records of the Company examined by us, there are no dues of Goods and Service Tax, provident
fund, employee’s state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value
added tax, cess and any other material statutory dues, as applicable, which have not been deposited on
account of any dispute.

(viily There were no transactions relating to previously unrecarded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as

income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(i) (a) The Company has not taken any loans or other borrawings from any lender. Hence, reporting under clause
3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank er financial institution or government or
government authority.

(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no outstanding term loans at the
beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) The Company has not raised funds for short-term basis during the year and there are no outstanding funds
raised for short-term basis at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order
is not applicable.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds
from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures.

() The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint
venlures or associate companies

(%  (a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer (including debt
instruments) during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or

convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence, reporting under clause 3(x)(b} of the Order is

not applicable.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Standalone Financial Statements of
Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited

(x) (@ No fraud by the Campany and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
year.
{b) No report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under
Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year.
© As represented to us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year.

(xii)  In our opinion, the Company is nat a Nidhi company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xiii) In our apinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and Section 188 of the Act with respect to applicable
transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the
standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) (a) In our opinion, the Campany has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature

of its business.
(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company during the
year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

(xv) In our opinion, during the year, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with its directors, and hence, provisions of section 192 of Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) () Inour opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India

Act, 1934, Hence, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)a), (b), and (c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016). Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the immediately
preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the board of
directors and management plans, and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report indicating that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of the
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however,
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is

based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Standalone Financlal Statements of
Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited

fiabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.

(x) (a) In our opinion, during the year, the Company is not covered under the criteria provided in sub-section (1) of
Section 135 of the Act for applicability of provisions of corporate social responsibility (CSR), and hence,
reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

{b) in our opinion, during the year, the Company is not covered under the criteria provided in sub-section (1) of
Section 135 of the Act for applicability of provisions of corporate social responsibility (CSR), and hence,

reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of the Orderis not applicable

For Kantilal Patel 8 Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 104744W

Al
Mayank S. Shah

Partner
Membership No.: 044922

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: October 14, 2024

UDIN: 24 044 922RKEJV 2 4954
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Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’ section of our report of even
date to the members of Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited)

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone financial statements under section
143(3)(i) of the Act

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company as of March 31, 2024 in
conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's responsibility for internal financial controls

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control aver financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential companents of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
('the ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note issued by the ICAl and the SAs
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those
SAs and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance abaut whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting with reference to the standalone financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to the standalone financial statements, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to the standalone financial
statements.

Meaning of internal financial controls over financial reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external

"KPC House", Besides High Court Auditorium Gate, Sola, Ahmedabad - 380 060, Gujarat, India.
E-mail : services@kpcindia.com | Web : www.kpcindia.com
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purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements includes those policies and procedures
that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of the standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could
have a material effect on the standalone financial statements

Inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financlal reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of aur information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in
all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to the
standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating

effectively as at March, 31, 2024 based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the [CAL

For Kantilal Patel & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.. 104744W

Mayank S. Shah
Partner
Membership No.: 044922

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: October 14, 2024

UDIN: 2408449422 BIEJUZ2 1989

. "KPC House", Besides High Court Auditorium Gate, Sola, Ahmedabad - 380 060, Gujarat, India.
E-mail : services@kpcindia.com | Web : www.kpcindia.com

e e e 43 e el



7" Annual Report

G-HIDE

KANTILAL PATEL & Co.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Annexure C to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Standalone Financial Statements of

Guijarat Rail infrastructure Development Corporation Limited

To

The Members
Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited

In continuation of our Independent Auditor's Report on standalone financial statements of Gujarat Rail
Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited (“The Company"), we have reported on Directions and Sub-
directions under 143 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 applicable for the year 2023-24, as under:

PART-1

Report under Section 143(5) of Companies Act, 2013 for the Financial Year 2023-24

(1)  MAIN DIRECTION:
oIt Directions Comments
No.
1, Whether the Compapy has system in place tg process all the Yes. All Accounting transactions are
accounting transactions through Information Technology .
L . ) processed through Information
system? If yes, the implications of processing of accounting )
. ; ) . Technology Systems. Therefore, there is
transactions outside IT system on the integrity of the N S . ]
. - ) . no financial implication on the integrity
accounts along with the financial implications, if any, may
of the accounts.
be stated.
2. Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan or
cases of waiver/write off of debts/loans/interest etc. made
o o0 | Company has not taken any loan hence
by a lender to the Company due to the Company’s inability not applicable
to repay the loan? If yes, the financial impact may be stated. PP ’
Whether such cases are properly accounted for ?
3. Whether funds {grants/subsidy etc.) received /receivable for | Company has received grant from

specific schemes from Central/State Government or its
agencies were properly accounted for/utilized as per its
term and conditions? List the cases of deviation.

Government of Gujarat, and it is
accounted for/utilized as per its term and
conditions. During the course of audit,
we have not come across any instances
of deviation.

{2) SECTOR SPECIFIC DIRECTIONS: INFRASTRUCTURE SECTOR

to be taken up under Public Private Partnership is in line
with the guidelines/ policies of the Government? Comment
on deviation if any.

Sr.

Nro Sub-Directions Comments

1. Whether the Company has taken adequate measures to | To the best of our knowledge and
prevent encroachment of idle land owned by it. Whether | information provided to us during the
any land of the Company is encroached, under litigation, | course of audit company does not own
not put to use or declared surplus? Details may be provided. | any land as on year end.

2. Whether the system in vogue for identification of projects

It is in line with the guidelines / policies
of the Government and there is no
deviation.

T e ST e ) T s s T e e
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33

Whether system for monitoring the execution of works vis-
a-vis the milestones stipulated in the agreement is in
existence and the impact of cost escalation, if any.
revenues/ losses from contracts, etc,, have been properly
accounted for in the books.

Company has adopted system to
monitor the execution of work and in our
random checks, during the course of
audit we have not come across any such
incident.

Whether funds received/ receivable for specific schemes
from central/ State agencies were properly accounted
for/utilized? List the cases of deviations

Whether the bank guarantees have been revalidated in
time?

Company has received the fund from
state government for the purpose of
projects to be taken up by the company.
We found that it was praperly accounted
for in the books of account.

As per the information and explanation
provided to us, the company has not
availed any Bank Guarantee during the
year. However, the company has
received Bank Guarantees and the same
has been revalidated by the Company in
time,

Comment on the confirmation of balances of trade
receivables, trade payables, term deposits, bank accounts
and cash obtained.

During the course of audit we have
received the balance confirmation of
Liquid deposits with GSFS, current bank
accounts, trade receivables and cash
halance.

The cost incurred on abandoned projects may be quantified
and the amount actually written-off shall be mentioned.

As per the information and explanation
provided to us, there are no abandoned
projects therefore this point is not
applicable.

For Kantilal Patel & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No,: 104744W

N
S

Mayank §. Shah
Partner
Membership No.; 044922

Place: Ahmedabad
Dale: Oclober 14, 2024

UDIN: 24o4qq22 BKEJUZA35]
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Gujarat Rall Infrastructure Development Corporation Ltd.
CiN:U74999GJ20175GC095040
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

{Amount in Lakhs)

: Note As at Asat
Particulars No. March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Plant and Equipment 4 24295 275.82
intangible Assets 5 0.00 0.00
Right of Use Asset - Leasehold Offlce 4 7.63 22.90
Financial Assets

(i) Investments in Jaint Ventures 6 37209.90 36046.52
(1i) Other Financial Assets 7 0.00 0.00
Other NonCurrent Assets 7 0.00 0.00
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 8 0.00 0.00
Income Tax Assets (Net 14 109.92 41.83
|T01'AL NEN-CURRENT ASSETS 37570.40 36387.07
CURRENT ASSETS
Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 9 202.80 363.13
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 3622.56 1705.99
(iii) Other Balances with bank 11 16625.85 25059.22
{iv) Loan 12 0.00 0.00
(v} Other Financial Assets 13 235.33 267.96
Other Current Assets 16 211.86 202.77
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 20898.40 27599.07
I TOTAL ASSETS 58468.80 63986.14
EQUITY AND UABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 17 9900.00 8376.47
Other equity 18 37695.05 A6869.86
TOTAL EQUITY A47595.05 45246.33
LIABILITIES
Share Application Maney Pending for Allotment 19 0.00 797.53
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
(i) Other financial liabllities
- Lease Liabillty 20 0.00 9.36
Deferred Government Grant 21 7410.18 17437.74

Deferred Tax Lisbilities !Nm} 8 0.60 0.90
TOTAL NON-CURENT LIABILITIES 7410.78 1824553
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities

(i) Trade Payable Due to : 22
MSME 0.00 0,00
Other 0.00 0.00
Disputed Dues - MSME 0.00 0.00
Dlsputed Dues - Other 0.00 0,00
{fi) Other financlal Liabllities 23
- Lease Liability 9.36 17.44
- Other financial Liablllties 1317.65 329.06
Provisions 24 52.07 102.41
Deferred Government Grant - 25 31.82 32.87
??Qr current Habilities 26 2052.07 12,50
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 3462.97 494.28
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 5BAGB.80 63986.14
Material accounting policies & See ac ying 1to52
Note to Standalone Financial Statements

1Al

Notes on accounts form Integral part of the S Financial §
As per our report of even date
For Kantilal Patel & Co
Chartered Accountants
FAN4104744W
g
ayank § Shah
Partner
Membership No. 044922
voiN: 2UOYYGL22BETUZ YISy
Place: Ahmedabad Place: Gandhinagar,
Date: 14/10/2024 Date: 14/10/2024

. Forand on behalf of the Board of Directars

'l .
-
' W
S\N. Joshi iita Christian m&éqw
CF

Director Managing Director
DIN: 09043461 DIN: 09002794
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Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Ltd.
CIN:U74999GJ20175GC095040
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on March 31, 2024
{Amount In Lakhs)
Note For the Period from Far the Period from
Particulars No April 01, 2023 to April 01, 2022 to
— March31,2024 March 31,2023 |
Income
Revenuc from operations 27 632.86 837.1!
Other Income 28 535.99 483.54
Total Income 1168.85 1320.69
Expenses
Employee benefit expense, payment to contractors and 29 T 247.61
consultants
Finance costs 30 1.80 3.37
Depreciation and amortisation expense 31 48.14 52.56
Other expenses 32 566.33 791.32
Totai expenses B67.24 1094.86
Profit /(Loss) before exceptional ltem and taxes 301.61 225.83
Exceptional Item ( Net of Tax) 0.00 0.00
Profit/(loss) before tax 301.61 225.83
Tax expense
Current tax 15 84,25 59.39
Deferred Tax Expense / (Income) 8 {0.30) 3.56
Total Tax Expenses 83.95 62.95
Profit/(loss) after tax for the period 217.66 162.88
Other comprehensive income
()  Items that may not be reclassified to profit or loss o -
(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit ar lass 0.00 0.00
{iii) Iterns that will be reclassified to profit or loss - .
{iv) Income tax relating to items that may be reclassified to profit or loss 0.00 0.00
Total comprehenslve Income/(Loss) for the year {Net of Tax) 0.00 0.00
Total comprehensive income for the period 217.66 162.88
Earnings per Equity share of Face Value of Rs. 10 each 33
Basic 0.25 0.22
Diluted 0.25 0.22
Materlal accounting policies & See accompanying Note to 1to52
Standalone Financial Statements
Notes on accounts form Integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements
As per our report of even date
For Kantilal Patel & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
. ‘ & M
..
Partner 5. N Joshi nkita Christian Sandlp Sogale
Membership Na. 043922 . CFO Director Managing Director
voin: 240 Yu§22 BRKEJTVZUAS 9 DIN: 09043461 DIN: 03002794
Place: Ahmedabad Place: GandhInagar
Date: 14/10/2024 Date: 14/10/2024
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Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Ltd.
CIN:U74999G)20175SGC095040
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY AS ON March 31, 2024
A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
[Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars Amount
As at Aprll 1, 2022 B376.47
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior perlod errors -
Restated Balance as at April 1, 2022 -
Changes during the year 2022-23 -
As at March 31, 2023 8376.47
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors -
Restated Balance as at April 1, 2023 -
Changes during the year 2023-24 1523.53
As at 31st March 2024 9900.00
B. OTHER EQUITY
{Amount in Lakhs)
Reserves and Surplus Equity instruments
Particulars General | Capital Re:::':::::on Retained ::S::i:::::; Total
Reserve | Reserve Reserve Earnings income
Balance as at April 1, 2022 - - - 104.61 E 104.61
Profit for the year - - - 162.88 . 162.88
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans (net of
tax) . 5 . = . -
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year . - - 267.49 - 267.49
Payment of dividend . - . . . -
Transfer to General reserve - - - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 . - . 267.49 - 267.49
Profit for the year . - . 217.66 . 217.66
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans {net of
tax) . .
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - - &
Total comprehensive income for the year . - . 485.15 - 485.15
Payment of dividend . . . - - ¥
Transfer to General reserve - - - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 - - - 485,15 - 485.15
see accompanying notes to the Financial Statements
Notes on accounts form integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements
As per our report of even date
For Kantilal Patel & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants * A
FRN. 104744W .
ayank S Shah « N\ Joshi ta Christian Sa
Partner CFO Director Managing Director
Membershlp No. 044922 e DIN: 09043461 DIN: 09002794
upin: 2UBLHYJLL BRETJUZUASA
Place: Ahmedabad Place: Gandhinagar
Date: 14/10/2024 Date: 14/10/2024
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Gujarat Rall lnfi ucture Develap Corporation Ltd.
CIN:U74999GJ2017SGC095040
dal Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2024

{Amount in Lakhs)|

For the Perfod from For the Period from

Particulars April 01,2023 to Aprll 01, 2022 to
_March31.2024  March 31.2023 |
1 Cash Flows from Operating Activites
Profit/{Loss) before tax as per Statement of Profit & Loss 301.61 225.83
Adjusted for:-
Interest Income {1427.63) (700.46)
Finance Cost 1.80 337
Government Grant Income {32.87) |37.30)
Depreciation / Amortisation 48.14 52.56
Interest on Grant from GOG 924.55 755.71
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes {184.36) (200, E}
Adjusted for Movement in Working Capital:
{Increase)/ Decrease in Other Current Assets (9.09) (150.69)
{increase]/ Decrease in Trade Receivable 160,33 199.33)
(Increase)/ Decrease in Other Financial Assets 8464.46 (25090.33)
Increase/ {Decrease) in Current Other Financial Liability 319.71 42.78
Increase/ {Decrease) in Non Current Other Financial Liability 0.00 1,04
Increase/ {Decrease) In Provislons {50.34} 54.25
Increase/ (Decrease) in Other current liabilities 2039.56 (4.7,
Operating Profit after Working Caplital Changes 10740.26 (zsur.s’gﬂ
Taxes Paid/Refund Received (Net of TDS) (152.34) 199.68
Net cash generated from operating activities {A) 10587.93 (25247.64)

2 Cash Flows fram Investing Activlties:
Purchase of Fixed Asset including capital waork in

progress & Intanglble asset 0.00 (5.21)
Investment in loint Vanture/Associate Company {1163.38) (11520.52)
Interest Recelved 142917 484.24
Net cash used In Investing actlvities (B) - 265.79 (11041.50)|
3 Cash flow fram financine activities :
Praceeds From Share Capital 726.00 192.16
Praceeds from Application Money pending allotment 0.00 51.00
Proceeds from Governmant Grant 12000.00 22208.16
Grant paid to SPY {11000.00) 0.00
Grant utilised for SPV Project Payment {10388.20) 0.00
Finance cost paid (255.71) (96.99)
Loan Given to Joint Venture (14491.57) 0.00
Loan feceived back from Joint Venture 14491.57 0.00
Repayment/ Increase lease liabilities (19.23) (15.86
Net cash used in financing activities (C) (8937.14) 22339.47
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A)+({D)+(C) 1916.57 (13949.67)
Cash and cash equlval as at the beginning of the year 170599 15655.66
Cash and cash equlvalents as at end of the year 3622.56 1705.99
Break up of cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
Cash in hand 0.11 .
Balances with Banks-in Current Accounts 2255.95 836.52
Balance with GSFS - Liquid Deposit 1366.50 869.47
3622.56 1705.99
Notes;

1 Cash and cash equivalent include cash and bank balances and deposits with the Bank {Maturity less than 3 months).
2 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect method’ as set out in the Ind AS - 7 Statement af Cash
Flow.

As per our report of even date attachaod

For Kantllal Patel & Co

Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the Board of Diractors
FRN. 744w » :

11@(_, E

3 d

Mayank S Shah Se i e
Partner 5. 1. Joshl ta Christian Saiftiip e
Membership No. 044922 CFi Director Managing Director
upin: 244 0 Ud §29. BkETUZUNSYy DIN: 09043461 DIN: 03002794
Place: Ahmedabad Place: Gandhinagar

Date: 14/10/2024 Date: 14/10/2029
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Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

1. Corporate Information

Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited (G-RIDE)} is a Joint Venture of Government of
Gujarat and Ministry of Railways, incorporated under provision of the Companies Act, 2013 on 06th January
2017.

G-RIDE has been incorporated for development of Rail infrastructure for critical connectivity and capacity
enhancement in the state of Gujarat.

2. The financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with resclution of the Directors on 26%
September 2024.

3 (1) Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments
which are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Historical cost is generally based on the
fair value of the consideration given In exchange for goods and services. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date.

A. Statement of Compliance

These financial statements of the company have been prepared to comply with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind
AS) including the rules notify under the relevant provision of the Companies Act, 2013, amended from time to
time.

Details of the Company’s accounting policies are included in Note 3(ii).

B. Functional and Presentation Currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%), which is also the Company’s functional currency.
C. Use of Estimates and Judgments

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, Income and expenses.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Critical Estimates and Judgments

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of
items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be
different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is
included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in
the financial statements.

Areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

®  Depreciation and Amortization:

Depreciation and amortization are based on management estimates of the future useful lives of the
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets. Estimates may change due to technological
dev_e!opments, competition, changes in market conditions and other factors and may result in changes
in the estimated useful life and in the depreciation and amortization charge.
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Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Stalements for the year ended 31 March 2024

e  Other areas are as below:

Estimation of current and deferred tax expense and payable:

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is regarded as probabie that deductibie
temporary differences can be realized. The Company estimates deferred tax assets and liabilities based
on current tax laws and rates and in certain cases, business plans, including management’s expectations
regarding the manner and timing of recovery of the related assets. Changes In these estimates may
affect the amount of deferred tax liabilities or the valuatlon of deferred tax assets and thereby the tax
charge in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Provision for tax liabilities require judgements on the interpretation of tax legisiation, deveiopments in
case laws and the potential outcomes of tax audits and appeals which may be subject to significant
uncertainty. Therefore, the actual results may vary from expectations resulting in adjustments to
provislons, the valuatlon of deferred tax assets, cash tax settlements and therefore the tax charge I the

Statement of Profit and Loss.

- Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies:

From time to time, the Company is subject to legal proceedings and other contingencies the ultimate
outcome of each being always subject to many uncertainties inherent in litigation. A provision for
expense is made when it is considered probable that a payment will be made, and the amount of the
loss can be reasonably estimated.

Significant judgement is made when evaluating, among other factors, the probability of unfavourable
outcome and the ability to make a reasonable estimate of the amount of potentlal loss. Expense
provisions are reviewed at each accounting period and revisions made for the changes in facts and
circumstances.

- Impairment of Assets:

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets that are subject to depreciation/ amortization are
tested for impairment periodically including when events occur or changes in circumstances indicate
that the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying value. The recoverable
amount of cash generating units is higher of value-in-use and fair value less cost to sell. The calculation
Involves use of significant estimates and assumptions which includes turnover and earnings multiples,
growth rates and net margins used to calculate projected future cash flows, risk-adjusted discount rate,
future economic and market conditions.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized prospectively,

D. Measurement of Fair Values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values, for both
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
techniques as follows.

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or fiability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair
value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value
hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement,
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The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period
during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the note of financial
instruments.

3 (ii) Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the period presented in these financial
statements.

a. Foreign Currency Transactions:

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the Company at the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the average rate approximates the
actual rate at the date of the transaction,

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency
at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss, except exchange differences arising from the
translation of the following items which are recognized in OCi:

- Equity investments at fair value through OCI (FVOCI);

- quallfying cash flow hedges to the extent that the hedges are effective.

b. Financial Instruments:

Trade receivables are initially recognized when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acyuisition or issue.

Financial Assets at amortized cost- These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Any gains or loss or derecognitlon
is effected in profit or loss statement

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) ~ All equity investments are
measured at fair values. Investments which are not held for trading purposes and where the Company has
exercised the aption to classify the investment as at FYTOCI, alt fair value changes on the investment are
recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). The accumulated gains or losses are recognized in OCI
are reclassified to retained earnings on sale of such investment.

Financial assets at Fair Value through Profit and loss (FVTPL) - These assets are subsequently measured at
fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognized in profit or loss.
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Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financinl Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Classification, Subsequent Measurement and Gains and Losses: Financial Liabllities

Financial liabllities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest method. For trade
and other payable maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying value approximates
fair value due to short maturity of these investments.

An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the company after
deducting all of its liabilities. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of equity instruments
are recognized as a deduction from equlty instrument net of any tax effects.

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not
retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets
are not derecognized.

Derecognition: Financial Liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled
or expired.

The Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are madifled and the cash flows under
the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognized at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognized in profit or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabifities are offset, and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when,
and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liabllity simultaneously.

c. Current and Non-Current Classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification.
An asset is treated as current when it is:

{a) expected to be realised in or is Intended to be sold or consumed in Company’s normal operating cycle.

{b) held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

{c) expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

{d) cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
12 months after the reporting date.

All other assets are classified as hon-current.

is current when:
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(a) itls expected to be settled in Company’s normal aperating cycle.

(b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

{c) itis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

(d) The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting date.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Operating Cycle

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or
cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

d. Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition and Measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs,
less accumulated depreciation, and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an ltem of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and
non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of
bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and
removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and
direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended
use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with
the expenditure will flow to the Company.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight line basis based on the rates as per
useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.

Assets costing less than INR 25,000 each are fully depreciated in the year of capitalization from the Financial
Year 2020-21 onwards.

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e., from (up to) the date on which asset
is ready for use (disposed of).

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if
appropriate. In case of a revision, the unamortized depreciable amount is charged over the revised remaihing
useful life.

Losses arising from retirement or gains or losses arising from disposal of fixed assets which are carried at cost
are recognized In the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Capital work in progress includes expenditure incurred on assets which are yet to be commissioned. All the
directly identifiable and ascertainable expenditure, incidental and related to asset incurred during the period of
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construction asset, till it is ready for use, is kept as capital work in progress (CWIP) and after commissioning the
same is transferred / allocated to respective "fixed assets".

Useful lives of Property, Plant and Equlpment for providing depreciation as estimated by the management are
as below:

Computers (End user devices) - 3 years

Computers (Server & Network) - 6 years

Office Equipment {including Kitchen Equipment) - 5 years
Furniture & Fixture - 10 years

Electrical Installations & Equipment- 10 years

Leasehold Building- 30 years

e. Intanglble Assets

intangibie assets that are the acquired by the Company are measured initially at cost.

After initial recognition, an intangible asset is carried at its cost less any accumulated amortization and any
accumulated impairment loss.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits from the specific asset
to which it relates.

Intangible assets are amortized in the Statement of Profit or Loss over their estimated useful lives, from the date
that they are available for use based on the expected pattern of consumption of economic benefits of the asset.
Accordingly, at present, these are being amortized on straight line basis.

Amortization method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted
if appropriate.

Useful lives of intangible assets for providing amortization as estimated by the management are as below:
Webslte, Software & Licenses - 3 years

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
and disposal.

Losses arising from retirement and gains or losses arising from disposal of an intangible asset are measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

f. Leases

As a lessee, the company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement
date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct
costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the Straight-line method from the commencement
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of -use asset or the end of the lease term. The
estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of Property, Plant &
Equipment. In addition, the right-of -use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and
adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability.

The lease Liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate as per standard.
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Lease Payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the Fix payments, including in-
subsequent fixed payments. The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. When the lease Hability is remeasured, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in profit and loss if the carrying amount of the right-of- use asset has
been reduced to zero. The company presents right-of-use assets (Lease hold building) as separate line item
in Non-Current Assets and lease liabilities in 'Other financial liability' in the balance sheet.

g. Impairment

Impairment of Financial Instruments

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at
amortized cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost are
credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime
expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events aver the
expected life of a financial instrument.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

Measurement of Expected Credit Losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credlt losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e., the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive),

Presentation of Allowance for Expected Credit Losses in the Balance Sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there
is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. if any such indication exists,
then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount being higher of the net selling
price or value in use. Value in use is determined from the present value of the estimated future cash flows
from the continuing use of the assets.
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If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. When an impairment loss
subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset
(or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

h. Finance Cost

Barrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign currency
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection
with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset
which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized as part
of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

i. Borrowing
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditianal right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a
material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of reporting period with the effect
that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the Company does not classify the
liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approvai of the financial
statement for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

j.  Revenue from Contracts with Customers (refer note no.43 8 44)
Company Recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five-step as set out in Ind AS- 115:-
(i) Identify contracts with a customer: - A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more

parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract
that must be met.

(ii) Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a
contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.
iii) Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the

company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a
customer excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

{iv) Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that
has more than one performance obligation the Company allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the
Company expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

(v} Recognise revenue when or as the Company satisfies a performance obligation.
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Other Revenue Recognition:

(i) Interest income is accounted on accrual basis. Interest earned on Government of Gujarat Grant is shown as
" Interest Payable to GOG". Hence, the same has not been recognized as an income of the company.
(li} Unbilled revenue represents value of service performed in accordance with the contract terms but not billed.

k. Government Grants

Government grants are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
all the attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is
recognized as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is
intended to compensate; are expensed.

Government grants, whase primary condition is that the Company should purchase, construct or otherwise
acquire non-current assets are recognized and disclosed as 'deferred income' under non-current
liability in the Balance Sheet and transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic
and rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

On receipt of Grant/Contribution from Government of Gujarat for investment in SPV's is recognized as
"Other reserve for Investment in Joint Venture" under the head of "Other Equity".

l. Investment in Joint Venture

The Company’s investment in its Joint Venture/ Associates is carried at cost net of accumulated impairment
loss, if any. On disposal of the Investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount is charged or credited to the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

m. Provisions (other than Employee Benefits)

A provision is recognized If, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present obligation that can be
estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the legal
or contractual obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows
(representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance
sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognized as finance cost. Expected future
operating losses are not provided for.

Contingencies

Provision in respect of loss contingencies relating to claims, litigation, assessment, fines, penalties, etc. are
recognized when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount can be estimated reliably.

n. Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence
of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it
is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle, or a reliable estimate of the
amount cannot be made.
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0. Income Taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognlzed in profit or loss except to the extent that it
relates to an item recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current Tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax
reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the
uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there Is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts, and it is intended to realize the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

Tax benefits of deductions earned on exercise of employee stock options in excess of compensation charged
to income are credited to other comprehensive income.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the correspanding amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is also recognized in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred tax is not
recognized for:

- Temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit/loss at the time of the transaction.
Taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwili.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable
profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognizes a
deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is
convincing other evidence that sutticient taxable protit will be available against which sucn deferred tax
asset can be realized. Deferred tax assets — unrecognized or recognized, are reviewed at each reporting date
and are recognized/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the
related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized
ot the liabllity Is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liahilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable
entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

Deferred tax in respect of timing differences which reverse after the tax holiday perlod is recognized in the
year in which the timing differences originate.
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p. Earnings per Share

Basic earnings/ (loss) per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The
weighted average numbers of equity shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for events of bonus
issue and share split. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings/ {loss) per share, the net profit or loss
for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

q. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits

with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the
Company’s cash management.

r. Events after the Reporting Period

Adjusting events are events that provide further evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the
reporting period. The financial statements are adjusted for such events before authorization for issue. Non-
adjusting events are events that are indicative of conditions that arose after the end of the reporting period.
Non-adjusting events after the reporting date are not accounted but disclosed.

s. Statement of cash flows
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or
payments. Cash flow for the year are classified by operating, investing and financing activities.

t. General

Any other accounting policy not specifically referred to are in consistent with the generally accepted
accounting principles.
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{Amount in Lakhs

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

6 Investment in Joint Ventures- Non Current

in Equity Shares of Joint Venture

Unquoted, fully paid up

Investments in equity shares carried at cost {Fully Paid)

Unquoted Equity Shares 35379.90 34245.52
35,37,99,000 (P.Y 34,24,55,202) Fully Paid up Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each of

Bahucharaji Rail Corporation Limited (BRCL)

Unquoted Equity Shares 1829.00 1800.00
1,82,90,000 {P.Y 1,80,00,000) Fully Paid up Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each of

G-RIDE Bedi Port Rail Limited (GBPRL)

<

Unquoted Equity Shares 1.00 1.00
10,000 (P.Y 10,000) Fully Paid up Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each of G-RIDE Hazira Rail
Limited (GHRL)

Extent of Holding in BRCL** 42.34% 55.95%
Extent of Holding in GBPRL*** 26.01% 25.70%
Extent of Holding in GHRL**** 100.00% 100.00%
Place of business/ country of incorporation India India
At Cost At Cost

Description of method used to account for the investments {Cost or fair value)
Total 37209.90 36046.52
Total Investments Non-Current 37209.90 36046.52
Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments - -
Market Value of Quoted [nvestments - -
Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments 37209.90 36046.52

** in Current Financial Year 2023-24, as per the terms of share holders agreement (SHA) G-Ride is required to subscribe share of
BRCL to the extent of 45% only. Due to delay In subscription by ather shareholders of BRCL, G-Ride's holding in shares of BRCL was
decrease from 45% { As per SHA) to 42.34% as at 31st March 2024,G-Ride does not entitled to enjoy control over BRCL, Since
decisions on fundamental matters of BRCL can be taken by obtaining Unanimous concurrence of all share holders & decision
making for reserved matters ( As prescribed under Schedule 1 to SHA) which are fundamental to the BRCL's operations shall require
affirmative vote of each shareholder of BRCL. As all shareholders of BRCL jointly controls the operations of BRCL , Investment in
BRCL Is treated as Investment in loint venture.

*#* In Current Financial Year 2023-24, as per the terms of State GR No. MIS/102021/UOR-4/124472/i-1 dated 01/07/2021 G-Ride
is required to subscribe share of GBPRL to the extent of 26% only which comes to Rs. 18.29 Crore out of which GOG portion comes
to Rs. 10.29 Crore as cash equity model & MOR portion comes to Rs. 8 Crore as without cash equity model (as Land). Out of GOG's
Portion GOG has invested Rs. 10.29 crore in GBPRL & Equity Share Contribution of Ministry of Railways (MOR) as Land through G-
Ride is completed as on balance sheet date.

**¥¥|n Current Financial Year 2023-24, as per the terms of State GR No, MIS/102021/UOR-06/I-1 dated 03/07/2021 2021 issued
by Government of Gujarat, SPV is created for execution and operation and Management of the New Gothangam (DFC Yard) to
Hazira Last Mile Rail Connectivity project in the state of Gujarat. G-Ride has invested Rs. 1,00,000/- as initial subscription.
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{Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

7  Non Current Assets
Inter corporate deposit with GSFS

8  Deferred tax Asset/ Liabilities
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) - opening 0.90 2.66
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) - .

Deferred tax Asset/ Liabilities 0.90 2.66
Deferred tax Asset / (Liability) relating to Prelimany Exp, Property, Plant & Equipment's, (0.30) 356
Right of Use Building, Lease Liability
Net Deferred tax Asset / Liabilities 0.60 0.90
9  Trade receivables*
Less than 6 months +
Undisputed Trade Receivable - Considered good 101.12 142.67
Undisputed Trade Receivable - Which have significant increase in credit risk - -
Undisputed Trade Receivable - Credit impaired - =i
Disputed Trade Receivable - Considered good - =
Disputed Trade Receivable - Which have significant increase in credit risk -
Disputed Trade Receivable - Credit impaired - =
6 months - 1year - -
1-2 years - -
2-3 years - -
More than 3 years - -
Unbilled Revenue* 101.68 220.46
Total 202.80 363.13

*Project Management Consultancy Charges accrued from BRCL for the month of March 2024, but billed in F.Y 2024-25, hence
booked as Unbilled Revenue Income in current year.
* Refer Note No. 38

10 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash in Hand 0.11
Balances with banks
In Current Account-SBI 107.33 88.54
In Share Application Money Account-58I - 746.53
In Current Account-YES Bank 0.15 0.46
YES Bank -Debit Card 1.00 0.99
In Current Account - BOB 2147.47 .
Balance with GSFS - Liquid Deposit 1366.50 869.47
Total 3622.56 1705.99
11  Other Balances with Banks
Inter corporate deposit with GSFS 2271.03 25059.22
FD With Banks 14354.82 0.00
16625.85 25059.22
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{Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
12  Loans-Current
Loans Receivables Considered Goods - Unsecured
Loans to related parties
-Bahucharaji Rail Corporation Limited F.Y 2023-24
Loan Given 11800.00
Loan Received Back (11800.00)
-G-Ride Bedi Port Rail Limited(GBPRL) F.Y 2023-24
Loan Given 2691.57
Loan Received Back (2691.57)
Totai = =
13  Other Financial Assets - Current
Interest Receivable From GSFS 54.81 236.79
Interest Receivable From Torrent Power 0.11 0.07
Other Advance - GIDB 0.00 30.00
Other Advance - Harsiddhi Travels 0.00 1.10
Interest receivable from GBPRL Grant 124,26 0.00
Interest receivable from SBI FD 56.15 0.00
Total 23533 267.96
14 Iacome tax Asset {net)
Advance Income Tax . .
Income Tax & TDS receivable 194.17 101.22
Less:
income Tax Provision F.Y 2023-24 (84.25) (59.39)
Total 109.92 41.83
15 TAXATION
TAX EXPENSE RECOGNISED IN STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS
Current Tax 84.25 59.39
Deferred Tax Expense/ (Income) 10.30) 356
Total Tax Expense Recognised in Current Year 83.95 62.95
The Tax Expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:
Profit/{Loss) Before Tax and Exceptional ltem 301.61 225.83
Applicable Tax Rate 27.82% 27.82%
Computed Tax Expense 83.91 62.82
TAX EFFECT OF:
Exempted income - .
Expense disallowed 13.89 15.56
Expense allowable (13.56) (14.85)
B/f Business loss Allowable 0.00 (4.15)
Additional Allowance net if MAT Credit - =
Current Tax Provision 84.25 59.39
Tax Expense Recognised in statement of Profit & Loss Account 84,25 59.39
Effective Tax Rate 28% 26%
Tax an Exceptional Item -
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{Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

16  Other Current Assets
Balances with Revenue Authorities recelvable in Cash or kind

GST receivable 178.77 197.20
Receivable for Rafaleshwar 2.60 0.00
Salary Receivable 1.82 0.00
Other Recelvable 21.55 0.00
Deposits
Security Deposit- Hardik Gas Agency 0.02 0.02
Security Deposit- BSNL 0.05 0.05
Security Deposit- Torrent Power Ltd. 1.80 1.80
Security Depaosit- Niluben Murlibhai Tulsiyan 1.00 0.00
Prepaid expense 4.25 3.70
Total 211.86 202.77

17  Equity Share Capital
Authorised
50,00,00,000 (Previous year 50,00,00,000) equity shares of % 10 each 50000.00 50000.00
50000.00 50000.00

Issued, subscribed and Paid up Capital
9,90,00,000 equity shares of X 10 each, fully paid up 9900.00 8376.47
{Previous year 8,37,64,706 shares of X 10 each, fully paid up)

Total 9900.00 8376.47

Notes:
()  Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the period
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
{Amtin Lakhs)  No of shares {Amtin Lakhs)  No of shares

At the beginning of the year 8376.47 83764706 5100.00 510 00 000
Add: Issued during the year 1523.53 15235 294 3276.47 32764 706
Outstanding at the end of the year 9900.00 990 00 000 8376.47 8 37 64 706

(i) Terms/rights attached to equity shares
- The Campany has only one class of equity shares having a par value of X 10 per share.
- Each holder of the equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.
- In the event of liguidation of the Company, the holders of the equity shares wili be entitled to recelve assets of the Company
remaining after settlement of all liabilities. The distribution wil! be in proportion of the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders.

(ii}  Allotment of Shares
-During the Current Financial Year Company has allotted 1,52,35,294 number of Equity Share of Rs. 10 each to below promoter:
-Government of Gujarat (GoG) C.Y 77,70,000(P.Y. 1,67,10,000) Equity Share of Rs. 10 each
-Government of India (Gol)-{(Ministry of Railway) C.Y. 74,65,294 (P.Y. 1,60,54,706) Equity Share of Rs. 10 each
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{Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

{iv)

)

[
0

19

The detalls of shareholders holding more than 5 % of issued share capital s set out below:

Name of Shareholder As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

No. of shares % holding No. of shares % holding
Government of Gujarat (GoG} 504 30 000 51.00% 427 20 000 51.00%
Government of India (Gol)- 48510000 49.00% 410 44 706 49.00%

(Ministry of Railways)

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders / members, the above shareholding represents legal and
beneficlal ownership of shares.

The Company has not issued, any bonus shares, share issued for consideration other than cash and share bought back during the
period of five years immediately preceedig the reporting date.

Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters

Promoter Name As at March 31, 2024 % Changes during
No. of shares % of total shares the year
Government of Gujarat (GoG) 5 04 90 000 51.00% NIL
Government of India (Gol)- (Ministry of Railways) 4 85 10 000 49,00% NIL
Promoter Name As at March 31, 2023 % Changes during
No. of shares % of total shares the year
Government of Gujaral (GoG) 427 20 000 51.00% NIL
Government of India (Gol)- (Ministry of Railways) 4 10 44 706 49.00% NIL
Other Equity
Retained Earnings
Opening Balance of retained earnings 267.49 104.61
Add/ Less Adjustments during the year 0.00 0.00
Net (Loss) / profit for the current year 217.66 162.88
Closing Balance 485.15 267.49
485.15 267.49
Other Reserve for Investment in Joint Venture
Share of Ministry of Railways- GOI 18136.15 18136.15
Share of Government of Gujarat 19073.75 18166.22
37209.90 36602.37
Total Other Equity 37695.05 36869.86
Share Application Money Pending for Allotment
Share Application Money Pending for Allotment* 0.00 797.53
0.00 797.53
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{Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
20 Other financial liabilities-Non Current
Lease Liability (Refer Sch No.37) 0.00 9.36
Total 0.00 9.36
21 Deferred Government Grant
Government Grant Deferred Income 205.91 237.74
Grant-in-aid from GOG* 7204.27 17200.00
Total 7410.18 17437.74
*Refer Note No. 45
22 Trade Payable-Current
Less than 1 Year
(i) MSME -
(ii) Others N
(i) Disputed Dues - MSME -
(iv) Disputed Dues - Others -
1-2 Years --
2-3 years -
More than 3 Years --
Total ( A+B) - -
The Company's exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to Trade Payables covered in Note 38.
23 Other Financial Liabilities-Current
- Lease Liability
Current maturity of lease liability (Refer Sch No.37)* 9.36 17.44
* Current maturity of lease liability
Lease liabllity unpaid 0.00 0.00
Total 9.36 17.44
- Other Financial Liabilities
Interest Payable to GOG 924.59 255.71
Earnest Money Deposit
Systra MVA consulting 4,00 4.00
Bhagwati Construction 0.00 50.00
AB Enterprise 0.00 1.50
Retention Money
Feedback Infra Pvt. Ltd 17.05 17.05
S P Infracon P R Patel & Co. 371.01 0.00
Trupal J Patel & Co 0.10 0.00
Credltors for expenses
Ishak Pathan 0.06 0.00
Western Railway Officer CL 0.30 0.01
Research & Consultancy A/C SVNIT 0.54 0.54
Bid Security payable to GBPRL 0.00 0.25
Total 1317.65 329.06
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{Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

24 Provisions-Current

Consultancy / Professional Charges Payable 2.34 8.03
Directors Meeting Exp Payable 0.00 0.35
Eiectricity exps. Payabie 0.28 0.48
Printing & stationery exps. Payablc 0.60 0.00
Feasibility study expense payable 0.00 29.87
Foreign Service Charges Payable 4.27 6.90
Secretarial Audit Fees Payable 0.63 0.54
Interest on gst payable 0.00 0.17
internal Audit Fees Payable 1.0 1.08
Man Power Service Exp Payable 5.39 10.71
Statutory Audit Fees Payable 0.90 0.90
Vehicle Hire Charges Payable 4.50 4.95
Professional Fees for Project finance team- payable 4.66 1.71
Security Hire Exps. Payable 0.01 0.46
Telephone exps. 0.09 0.09
Rent Payable A/c 4.50 433
Provision For Expense Afc 0.00 30.00
PMC Expense KTRD-BHRI Payable A/c 18.19 0.00
Repairs & Maintenance exp payable 3.52 0.96
Stipend Exp Payable 0.00 0.25
Office Expense payable 1.11 0.63

Total 52.07 102.41

25 Deferred Government Grant
Government Grant Deferred Income 31.82 32.87
Total 31.82 32.87

26  Other current liabilities
(i) Statutory Dues Payable

GST Payable RCM 0.00 1.03
Gandhinagar Municipal Corp - Prof Tax 0.00 0.01
GST TDS payable 23.03 1.64
TDS Payable 4211 8.56
NPS Payable 0.09 0.37

(i) Employee benefits Payable

SIS Payable 0.00 0.00
Sr. Div. Fin. Mgr. Western Railway,A'bad 0.30 0.89
Expense Payable for Rafaleshwar Project 1479.99 0.00
Advance received from G-Ride Bedi Port Rail Limited 506.55 :

Total 2052.07 12.50
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Amount in Lakhs

For the Perlod from Farthe Pe ram

Partlculars Aprll 01,2023 to April 01, 2022 to

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

27 Revenue from operations
From C with C

Project Management Consultancy Fees 519.98 592.20
Unbilled Revenue Income* 112,98 244.95
Total 632.86 837.15

*Prafect Management Consultancy Charges accrued from BRCL for the manth of March 2024, but will be billed in E.¥ 2024.25, hence booked as
Unbilled Revenue Income in current year.

28 Otherincome

Government Grant Income 32.87 37.30
Interest Received 503,04 444.75
Tender Processing Fee 0,00 1.48
Other Income 0.08 0.01

Total 535.99 483.54

*Gross Interest earned Rs 1427.63 Lakhs (P.Y Rs. 700.46 Lakhs}, out of which interest payable ta GOG on grant received from GOG is R5.924.59
Lakhs (P.Y Rs.255.71 Lakhs). Hence net Interest income booked is Rs. 503.04 Lakhs (P.Y Rs. 44,75 Lakhs),

29 Employee benefit expense, payment to contractors and consultants

Salary 151.58 99.28
Security Hire Expenses 4,03 647
Staff Welfare Expense 1.24 1.27
Man Power Services 94.12 14059
Total 250.97 24761
30 Flnance Cast
Interest on Lease Liabllitles (Refer Sch No.37) 1.80 3.37
Total 1.80 3.37
31 Depreciation and amortisatl p
Depreciation ’ 32.87 37.30
Amortisatlon of Right of use asset (Refer Sch No.37) 15.27 15.26
Total 48.14 52.56 |
32 Other expenses
Advertisement Expenses 7.25 60.59
Audit Fees - Internal Audit 1.20 120
Audit Fees - Statutory Audit* 1.00 1.00
Books & Perlodicals Expense . 0.18
Business Promation Exp 4.20 -
Bank Charges 0.01 -
PMC charges 234.19 268.72
Consultancy & Professional Fees 122.40 180,98
Diwali Gift Expense 0.64 5.23
Electricity Expenses 5.08 5.80
Feasibility Study Expenses 44.06 149,13
Hotel & Accommodatlian - 0.27
insurance Exp. 1.06 0.99
Late Filllng Fees of ITR 0.05 -
Legal / ROC & Stamp Duty Fees 1.55 3,51
Office Exp 10.14 8.87
Printing & Stationary Expenses 1.66 2.40
Rent Expenses 10.90 10.30
Repalrs & Maint. Expenses 10.00 5.53
Reimbursement of Exp to Director 0.80 6.49
Relmbursement of Exp to Others 3332 2,70
Secretarial Audit Fees 0.70 0.60
Software Renewal Charges 4.92 4,54
Stipend Exp 1.99 0.67
Telephane & Internet Exp 117 117
Tender Fees 0.08 0.15
Traveling Expenses 28.32 15,20
Vehicle Hire Charges 39.64 55.00
Total 566,33 791,32
Other Expenses includes:
*Auditors Remuneratian:
Statutory Audit Fees 100 1.00
Tatal Total 1.00 1.00

Other Comprehensive Income {OCl)
There are no component of other comprehenslve income that are required or to be disclosed.
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For the Peslod from  Far the Pe om

Partlculars April 01, 2023 to April 01,2022 to
Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
33 Earnlngs per share ('EPS’)

Earnings per share is caleulated by dividing the net profit/ (loss) attributable to the equity sharehalders by the welghted average number of
equity shares of Rs.10 each outstanding during the year which is as under:

Particulars 2023-2024 2022-2023
Net Profit/{Loss) attributable to equity shoreholders (Rs in Lakhs) 217.66 162.08

Weighted Avg. No. of equity shares held during the year* 88577628 73082514
Face value per share in X 10 10
Basic and diluted® Earning Per share 0.25 022

* There is no potential equity Shares so Basic and Diluted EPS are Same
34 Equity Commitments :

(1) As per Share Holder Agreement of BRCL, G-RIDE required to contribute Rs 43929.9 Lakhs into equity share capital of BRCL out of which Rs.
371549 Lakhs has been contributed by G-RIDE in equity share capital of BRCL.

{2) As per Share Holder Agreement of GBPRL, G-RIDE required to contribute Rs 1029 Lakhs into equity share capital of GBPRL out of which Rs,
1029 Lakhs has been contributed by G-RIDE in equity share capital of GBPRL.

35 Segment Information
In accordance with Ind-As 108, the operating segments used to present segment information are identlfied on the basis of internal reports used
by the Company’s Management to allocate resources to the scgments and assess their performance,
The Board of Directors is collectlvely the Company's 'Chief Operating Decision Makes' or ‘CODM' within the meaning of Ind AS 108. T
indicators used for internal reporting purposes may evolve In connection with performance assessment measures put in place.
Information about geographical areas
The Company do not have any operations in economic environments with different set of risks and returns. Hence, it is considered to be
operating in a single gengraphical sagment

36 Dues to Micro, Small and Medlum Enterprises

There were no amounts payabie to any Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises to whom the company over dues, which are outstanding for more
than 45 days as at March 31, 2024,

37 lLease Arrangements
The Company has entered inte an agreement with Gujarat Udhyog Bhavan Society for obtaining office premise on lease for a period of 5 years
at monthly rent of Re. 1,60 285/-
The above lease has been accounted by deblting Right of Use - leasehold praperty and crediting corresponding lease liability. The value of leitse
liabllity has been derived by discounting future Jease payments of 5 years @ 9.5% p.a.

Maturity Analysis of Loase Liability

Partlculars Less Than 12 Months More Than 12 Months Total Liahility

As at March 31, 2024 9.36 - 9.36
As at March 31, 2023 17.44 436 26.79
Amount Recognised in Statemant of Profit & Loss }
Partieulars 31-03-2024 31-03-2023|
Interest on Lease Liabilities 1.80 137
Amoetisation of ROU Assets 15,27 15.26
Total 17.07 18,64
Details of Right of Use (ROU) Assets included In Leaschold Property under Schedule of PPE:

Particulass 31-03-2024 31-03-2023
|Opealng Carrying Value as at Balance Sheet Date 22.90 38.16
Adtlition ta ROU Assets during the year 0.00 0.00
Amortisation of ROU Assets during the year 15,27 15.26

Closing Carrying Value os at Bal Sheet Date 7.62 22,90
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38 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Palicies
The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks. The

Company's senior mar is supported by Finance Department that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financlal risk governance framework
for the Company. The Finance department provides assurance to the Company's senior management that the Company's financial risk activities are

appropriately governed,

{a) Market Risk

Market Risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices
comprises interest rate risk. The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on; the carrying values of gratuity and other postretirement
obligations: provisions; and the non-financial assets and liabilities,

{1) Interest Rate Risk
Interest Rate Risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will Fiuctuate because of changes In market interest rates. The

borrowings of the Company are interest free and therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107.
{b) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity Risk Is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring utaccaptalil

losses. The Company's objective is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of llquidity to meet its cash and callateral requirements. The Company closthy

monitors its liquidity poslition and deploys a robust cash management system. It maintains adequate sources of financing at an optimised cost,
(i) The table below summarises the maturity proflle of the Company's financial liabilitles based on cantractual undiscounted payments.
{Amount In Lakhs)
As at March 31, 2024 On demand Less than 3 months 3to 12 months |1-5 years More than 5 Total
years

Burrowings - = ) -
Trade Payable - o s - -
Other Financial Liabilities .- 0.90 1326.11 - . 1327.01
As at March 31, 2023
Borrowings s - -s
Trade Payable - = o~ = - i
Other Financial Liabilities - 5.01 341.49 9.36 - 355.85
{c) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet Its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The

Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade recelvables) and from its financlng activitles, Including deposits with banks and
financial institutions and other financial instruments.
(i) Trade Receivables

All outstanding customer receivables of the company are regularly monitored, Company has not witnessed any bad debts or lang outstanding during the
year. Furthermore, all outstanding customers receivables as on reporting date are less than 6 months. Accordingly, trade receivables are subject to extrumely

low credit risk and management has assessed that no impalrment of trade receivables is required.
{li} Financial Instruments and Cash Deposit
Credit risk from balances with bank and financial Institutions Js managed by the Company's finance department under the supervision of company's senior
management, All balances with banks and financial institutions is subject to low credit risk due to good credit ratings assigned to the Company. This Lielng
under the supervision of regulatory autharity,

39 Related Party Disclosures
(i} Related Parties and the nature of relationship :
Holding Entity
1.Government of Gujarat (GOG)
2 Ministry of Railways (MOR)
loint Venture
Bahucharaji Rail Corporation Limited (BRCL)
G-Ride Bedi Port Rail Limited (GBPRL}
G-Ride Hazira Rail Limited (GHRL)
Key Management Personnel / Executive Director

Smt. Mamta Verma, IAS Chairman (from 29/08/2024)

Shri S I Haider Chairman (from 26/04/2023 to 01/08/2024)
Smt.AvantikaSing Aulakh Managing Director  (from 22/11/2021 to 04/04/2023)
Shri Gaurang Makwana Managing Director  (from 05/04/2023 to 10/09/2023)
Shri Sandeep Sagale Managing Director  (from 11/09/2023)

Shr! santosh Kumar Director (P&P}) {from 19/05/2017 to 16/07/2024)
Shri s. N. Joshi CFO

Director Non-Executive

Shri TK Pandey Director (from 15/07/2021 to 16/05/2023)
Shri Niraj Kumar Directar {from 17/05/2023)

Shrl Uday Shankar Jha Director (from 09/12/2022 to 07/03/2024)
Shri Kalpesh Vithiani Director (from 20/08/2020)

Shri Sanjay Gupta Director (from 30/11/2021)

Shri Karuna Nidhi Singh, IRTS Director {from 07/03/2024)

Smt. Ankita Christian - Director (from 06/10/2020)
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[(1)] tons with Related Parties 1A tin Lokhs)
Summary of transactions / HoldIng Entity Jaint venture Key management personnel and
Bal i rtigs _relatlves
Transactions during the year For the year ended |For the year ended For the year For the year For the year For the year
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023 ended March ended March ended March 31,| ended March 31,
L2024 312023 12024 2023
Laan glven 0.00 14491 57 3000.00 0.00
ioan Received Back 000 14491.57 3000.00 000
Relm. of exp. 0.00 24.48 0.60 B.42
Remuncration/ Salary 0.00 - 88.40 294
Tender Fees payable to GBPRL ago a’s
Intorest Expense 924.59 25571
Interest income 0.00 264.85 .
Investment in Shares 1523.53 3276.47 1163.38 1232052
Shre Application Money Received 0.00 51.00 -
Grant fram GOG 12000.00 21200.00
Grant paid to Project SPV 11000.00
Equity in form of Land 0,00 801,00
Bid Pracessing Fees Collected &
transfer 0.00 0.23 0.08
Relm. of Preliminary Expense 0.00
Fees for Project Development
Services & Project Management
Condultancy Fees - 492,48 244,95
Balance as at yearend Holding Entity Joint venture Key management personnel and
rolatives
For the year ended |For the year ended For the year For the year For the year For the year
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 ended March  |ended March  |ended March 31,|ended March 31,
31,2024 31, 2023 2024 2023
Amount Aeceivable . 112.54 220.46 -
Amount Payable 924.59 255.71 506.55
40 Fair vValue Measurements {Amount In Lukhs)
Set out bioluwy, 1s 3 comparmon by class of the carrying amounts and falr value of the Company's financial instruments:
Category As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Carrying Value |(Fair Value Carrying Value |Fair Value
1} Financial assats at Amaortlred Cost
Investments {current / non current) 37209.90 37209.90 36046.52 36046.52
Trade receivables (current / non cutrent) 202.80 202.80 363.13 363,13
Cash and Cash equivalents 3622.56 3622.56 1705.99 1705.99
Other Balances with bank 16625.85 16625 85 25059.22 25059.22
Othcr flnancial assct {current / non current) 235.33 235.33 267.96 267.96
Total 57896.44 57896.44 653442.83 63442.83
2) Financlal L1abllitles at Amortized Cost
Other financlal liabllities {current/non current) 1327.00 1327.00 355,85 355.85
Total 132700 1327.00 355.85 355.85

The fair value of the financlal assets and liahilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction hetwien
willing parties, other than In a forced or liguidatlon sale, Management has d that trade recelvables, cash and cash equlvalents, other flndancial assts,
trade payables and other financial llabilities approximate thelr carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturitles of these instruments.

Fair Value Hierarchy
All financial instruments for which fair value is recognised or disclosed are categorised within the Fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the|
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: Valuation technigues for which the lawest level input that has a significant effect on the fair vatue measurement are obiservable, elther directly or
indirectly
Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that has a significant effect on the fair value measurement is not based on observable market|
data.

The following table provides the falr value measurement hicrarchy of the Company's assets and liabilities.
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Quantitative disclosures fair value hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2024:
Total {Carrying | Quoted Pricein |  Significant Significant
Value) Active Markets observable unobservable
Particulars {Level 1) inputs (Level 2) | inputs (Level 3)
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Investments 37209.90 . i i
Trade receivables 202.80 - - »
Cash and Cash equivalents 3622.56 . 4 I
Other Balances with bank 16625.85 .
Other financial asset {current/non current) 235.33 - v »
Total 57896.44
Quantitative discl es fair value ent hi hy for liabilitles as at March 31, 2024:
Tatal (Carrylng | Quoted Price In Significant Significant
Value) Actlve Markets observable unobservable
Particulars (Level 1) Inputs {Level 2) | inputs (Level 3)
Fi 1al Liabilities ed at amortised cost
Trade Payables . - -
Other fi ial Liabilitics{current/non current) 1327.00 . - ¥
Total 1327.00
Quantitative disclosures falr value measurement hicrarchy for assets as at March 31, 2023:
Quoted Price in Significant Significant
Total (Carrying | Active Markets | abservable unobservable
Particulars Value) (Level 1) Inputs (Level 2) | inputs (Level 3)
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Investments 36046.52 . L4
Trade receivables 363.13
Cash and Cash equlvalents 1705.99 . b
Other Balances with bank 25059.22 - . o
Other financial asset (current/non current) 267.96 . = .
Total 63442.83 . - -
Quantitative disclosures fair value ment hicrarchy for llabilitles as at March 31, 2023:
Total (Carrylng | Quoted Price in Significant Significant
Value) Active Markets observable unobservable
Particulars (Level 1] Inpuls {Level 2} | inputs [Lovel 3)
Financial Llabliitles measured at amortlsed cost
Trade Payables -
Other financial Liabilities{current/non cureent) 355.85 . -
Total 355.85

41 DETAILS OF LOANS GIVEN, INVESTMENTS MADE AND GUARANTEE GIVEN COVERED U/S 186 (4) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013.

Loans glven and Investments made are given under the respective heads. ( Refer. Note No. 6 & 12 respectlvely}
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42 Note on Project Management Consultancy to BRCL
GRIDE is appolnted by BRCL as Praject Management Cansultant for execution of project of Katosan Road — Becharaji ~Chanasma — Ranuj Including MSIL

siding at the value of 10% of the profect cost as approved in the 1** meeting of Board of Directar of BRCL held on 09.01.2019. Contract agreement has been
executed as on 28.08.2020 for the same,

The PMC charges shall be kept at Original Estimated Cost, which is Rs 45260 Lakhs, in two phases for claiming total PMC charges Rs 4526 Lakhs. Phase-wise|
PMC charges are as under:

(i)Katosan Road to Becharall incl MSIL Siding (Phase-1) 1982 Lakhs
(ii)Becharaji to Ranu) (Phase-I1) 2544 Lakhs
Total Sanctioned PMC charge 4526 Lakhs

Revised project cost {Phase wise) & PMC charges has been approved in 15th Board Meeting of GRIDE held on 20.08.2020.

As per contract executed with Gride on August 28, 2020 the detalls of stage wise PMC charges payable to GRIDE as under:
(Amount (n Lakhs)

Sr. |Sanctioned PMC Charges for Stage-wise PMC Charges for Phase-
Stages of PMC .
No Phase-| I, Including Taxes
1| Transaction Advisory {30% of sanctioned charges for Phase-1) 594.6
2| Project Management (45% of sanctioned charges for Phase-1) 1982 851.9
3| Commissioning & Testing {25% of sanctioned charges for Phase-l) 495.5

{Amount in Lakhs)

Sr. Sanctioned PMC Charges for Stage-wise PMC Charges for Phase-
Stages of PMC
No Phase-ll 11, Including Taxes
1| Fransaction Advisory (30% of i charges for Phase-l} 763.2
2| Project Management (45% of sanctioned charges for Phase-ll) 2544 1144.8
3| Commissioning & Testing (25% of sanctioned charges for Phase-l} 636.0

Billing Status as on 31.03.2024
{Amount In Lakhs)

Sr. Amount certified including GST Bill Ralsed
Stages of PMC

No
1 Transaction Advisory (30% of sanctioned charges for Phase-1) 594.60
2 Transaction Advisory (30% of sanctioned charges for Phase-Il) 763.20
3 Project Manag t (45% of ioned charges for Phase-l} (PMC Charges @

8.919 Crore for Rs 263.52 Crare*

a JPC-01 to IPC 41 26352.00 891.90

0.00
4 Praject Management (45% of sanctioned charges for Phase-l) (PMC Charges @
IPC-01 to IPC 22 28402.55
a 931.46
[ IPC-23/24f25 1362.87 36.14
Total Bill Raised up to March 31, 2024 3217.30

191.83 (Excludi
PMC Charges Incurred till March'2a 19183 (Excluding GST & 18%)




G - B I D E 7" Annual Report

Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Ltd.
Notes to Standalone Financlal St its for the year ending on March 31, 2024

43  Note on Project Management Consultancy to GBPRL
GRIDE is appointed by GBPRL as Project Management Consultant for the project of G-Ride Bedi Port Rail limited {GBPRL) at the value of 10% of the project
cost as approved in the 3rd meeting of Board of Director of GBPRL held on 21,03.2022. Contract agreement has been executed as on 25.03,2022 for the
same.

Project Management Consultant (PMC) for this project at charges @ 10,00% of the basic cost of project (Rs. 5240 Lakhs) (excluding cost of land) i.e. Rs. 524
Lakhs broadly classifled Into below three categories

a) Transaction Advisory: 3% of the total basic cost of project
b) Project Management: 4.5% of the total basic cost of project
c) Commissioning & Testing: 2.5% of the basic cost of project

As approved in 20th Board Meeting of GRIDE, the details of stage wise PMC charges receivable from GBPRL Project are as under.
{Amount in Lakhs)

Sr. Sanctloned PMC Charges for Stage-wise PMC Charges for
Stages of PMC . P
No project project, Including Taxes
1 |Transaction Advisory {3% of sanctioned charges) 157.2
2 |Project Management (45% of sanctioned charges) 524.0 235.8
3 |Commissioning & Testing {25% of sanctianed charges) 131.0

Billing Status as on 31.03.2024
{Amount in Lakhs)

Sr. A t certified including GST Bill Raised
Stages of PMC
No
1 Transaction Advisory (30% of sanctioned charges ) 157.20

2 Project Management (45% of sanctioned charges ) (PMC Charges @ 2.358 Crore
for Rs 46.17 Cr* (R}))

a IPC-01 at 16/10/2021 467.77 23.89
b IPC-02 at 02/11/2021 426.35 21.77
c IPC-03 at 06/12/2021 1442.44 73.67
d IPC-04 at 18/01/2022 765.57 39.10
e IPC-05 at 29/01/2022 259.19 13.24
f IPC-06 at 23/03/2022 789.86 40.34
le IPC-07 at 18/05/2022 173.95 8.88
h IPC-08 at 19/10/2022 307.52 14,91
Blii Raised up to 31st March, 2024 4632.64 235.80

3 Commissioning & Testing {25% of sanctioned charges) 131.00
Total BIil Raised up to 31st March, 2024 (1+2+3) 524.00|

{Amount in Lakhs)
44 Note on borrawing given to GBPRL and Interest recelved from GBRPL

Particular 2023-24 2022-23
Dpening balance of loan . -
Loan glven during the year 1449157 -
Less: Loan received back during the year 14491,57 -
Closing balance of foan 0.00 5
Total interest paid to G-RIDE as per GSFS Interest Rates for ICD 264.85 -
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45 Mote for Government Grant Recelved for Project SPV

The company has received grant of Rs. 17200 Lakhs for its Praject SPY & Proposed Project SPV in Financial Year 2022-23. The same has been transferred to
Project SPV in the next financlal year 2023-24

Grant Status for Financial Year 2022-23
Project Name Amount of Grant Praject SPV Amount Utllised
1. Development of GCT Terminal at |As. 6000 Lakhs G-fido Bedi Port Rall Limited
Bedl Port
2. Development of GCT Terminal at |Hs. 11200 Lakhs Proposed SPV -
Worbi, Rafaleshwar

Amount Transferred to Project SPY

Grant Status for Financial Year 2023-24

. Amount Utilised
Project Name Amount of Grant Project SPV
1. Development of GLCT Terminal at |, 5000 Lakhs G- Ride Bedi Port Rail Limited .
e Amount Transferred to Project SPV
Bedi Port
2. Development of GCT Terminal at |R4. 6000 Lakhs G- Ride Gati Shakti Cargo Terminal(Morbi) | Out of Rs 17200 Lakhs Rs, 10338 20 Lakhs has been
Morhl, Rafaleshwar
Limited is incarporated on 17/05/2024. utllised durlng the current flnancial yeir.

Note: During the cusrent financial year G-Ride has received Rs 1000 Lakhs general grant out of Rs. 607,53 Lakhs spent during the year & balance of Rs.
392.47 Lakhs which will be utilised in next financial year.

46 During the earlier financial years company has incurred feaslbily study expense of of Rs. 27.39 Lakhs for PM Gati Shaktl rafaleshwar Project. During thw
Financial year 2024-25 for that project company has been incorporated in the name of G-Ride Gati Shakti Cargo Terminal {Morbi) Limited accordingly we will
recover that expense with mark up once the approval of the both the company's hoard is accorded.

a7 The Code on Social Security. 2020 {‘Code’} has been notified in the Official Gazette of Indla on 29th September, 2020 which could impact the contributions af
the Company towards certain employment benefits. The effective date from which changes are applicable Is yet to be notlfied and the rules are yet to b
framed. Impact, if any, of the change wlll be assessed and accounted in the period of notification of the relevant provisions

4

Other statutory information
1) The Company has not traded or invested In Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
il] No praceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for haiding any Benami property under the Benani Transactivns (Piotilition]
Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.
iii) The Campany has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person{s} or entlty(ies}, Including forelgn entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the intermediary shall:

{a) directly or indireclly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company [ultimite
beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on hehalf of the ultimate beneficlaries.
|v) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entitics {funding party} with the understanding {whuther
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entites Identified In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party [ultimite
beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the fike on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.”
v) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during
the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant pravisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).
vi) The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on
number of Layers) Rules, 2017.
vii) The Company does not have any transactions with companies which are struck off.
viii) The Company has been maintaining its books of accounts in the Tally Prime which has feature of recarding audit trall of each and every transaction,
creating an edit log of each change made in baoks of account along with the date when such changes were made and ensuring that the audit trail cannot be
disabled, throughout the yeur as required by proviso to sub rule (1) of rule 3 of The Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 known as the Companies {Accounts)
Amendment Rules, 2021.

49 The Company has not entered with any Scheme(s) of arrangement in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013,

50 As per the Section 203(1) of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rute 8 of the Companies (appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014
which required appointment of Key Managerial Personnel (KMP). The company has not appointed full time Qualified Company Secretary till the date of
report. However, the company has availed services of Practicing Company Secretary.
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§1 Varlous Financial Ratio are disclosed as under :

:l: Ratlo Numerator Denominator 31-03-2024 31-03-2023
1|Current ratio {X) Current Assets Current Liabilities 6.03 55.84
Percentage Change:(89.19)%  Reason for Change: Proportionate change in current liabillty is more as compare to previous year,
Sh: Ider’s Equity (Capltal plus
2|Debt equity ratio (X) Total Debt areholder's Equity (Capltal p NA NA
reserve)
Net Profit before taxes + Non-cash operating
3 . expenses like depreciation and other Interest & Lease Payments +
3 NA
Deb service coverage ratio (X amortizations + Interest + other adjustments Principal Repayments NA
like loss on sale of Fixed assets etc
Net Profits after taxes - Preference Dividend
4Return on Equity (%) etrro )((if any) erence Divide Average Shareholder’s Equity 2.29 235
Percentage Change: (-2.74)% Reason for Change: As during the year company has incurred profit as compare to previous year.
Average | tory (Opening +
S [Inventory turnover ratlo Cost of goods sold OR sales VETeES 'nven ary (Opening NA NA
Closing balance / 2)
Net Credit Sales (gross credit sales minus sales| Average Accounts Receivable
6|Trader recelvable turnover ratio © (e ¢ s 53 ¢ ag N 2,24 3.60
return) {Opening + Closing balance / 2)
Percentage Change: [-37.79)% Reason for Change: As there were decrease In revenue,
Net Credit Purch 0ss credit h )
7|Trade payabte turnover ratio e N rchases (gr purchases Average Working Capital NA NA
minus purchase return )
8|Net capital turnover ratio Net Sales (total sales minus sales returns) Working Capital 0.04 0,03
Percentage Change: 17.52% Reason for Change: As current year turnover is decreased from previaus year,
9|Net profit ratia | Net Profit | Net Sales | 0.344 0.195
Percentage Change:76,78%  Reason for Change: As during the year company has incurred profit as compare to previous year,
Capltal Employed (Tangibie Net
10|Return on capltal employed Earning before interest and taxes ‘Warth + Total Debt + Deferred Tax 0.0063 0.0050!
Liabllity)
Percentage Change:26.97% Reason for Change: As during the year company has incurred profit as compare to previous year loss.
11|Return on investment | Return ' Investment l (0.0327)[ 0.0005
Percentage Change: (6668.89)% Reason for Change: Proportionate increase In Investment is more & increase in loss.

52 Capital commitments :
There is no contracts remaining to be executed on capltal account hence there is no capital commitment outstanding as on balance sheet date.

Signatories to Note 1to 52

As per our repart of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Kantilat Patel & Co
Chartered Accountants L N
FRN. 100744W !
ayank § Shah S. N.Noshi a Christian Sand
Partner CFO Director Manafing Director
Membership No. 044922 DIN: 09043461 DIN: 09002794
uom: 2404 Y2 ZBKETVZH9SY
Place: Ahmedabad Place: Gandhinagar

Date: 14/10/2024 Date: 14/10/2024
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independent Auditor’s Report
To the members of Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Deveiopment Corporation Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development
Corporation Limited (the “Company"), and the Campany's share of loss in its joint ventures, which comprise the
consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows fut the year Lhien ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements including a summary of matcerial
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as 'consolidated financial

statements’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act), in the

manner so required, and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended {"Ind
AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March
31, 2024 and its loss, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that

date for the year ended on that date.
Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
In the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Finandial Slatements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (JCAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities In accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe Lhal the
audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the

consolidated financial statements.
Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other

information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to the Board's Report

‘KPC House", Besides High Court Auditorium Gate, Sola, Ahmedabad - 380 060, Gujarat, India.
E-mail : services@kpcindia.com | Web : www.kpcindia.com
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independent Auditor’s Report
To the members of Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited

but does not include the consclidated financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The other information

is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditors’ report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express

any farm of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance as required under SA

720 'The Auditors' responsibilities relating to other Information’. We have nothing to report in this regard.
Management's responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act, with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, including total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS
specified under section 133 of the Act and the rules thereunder, as amended. This responsibility alsc includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management or Board of Directors either intend

to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors of the respective companies included in the Company are also responsible for overseeing

the Company’s financial reporting process.

"KPC House", Besides High Court Auditorium Gate, Sola, Ahmedabad - 380 060, Gujarat, India.
E-mail : services@kpcindia.com | Web : www.kpcindia.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Ta the members of Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our ohjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and abtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resuiting from fraud is higher than for one resuiting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, fargery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)() of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financiai controis system in place and the ope
effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to madify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's repart. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

B Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

"KPC House”, Besides High Court Auditorium Gate, Sola, Ahmedabad - 380 060, Gujarat, India.
E-mail : services@kpcindia.com | Web : www.kpcindia.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the members of Gujarat Rail inrastructure Development Carporation Limited

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Company of which we are the independent auditors and whose financial information we
haveaudited, to express an apinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. We remain solely responsible for

our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, make it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work: and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified

misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremnely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be

expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter
1. The consolidated financial statements include the Company's share of net loss of INR 1364.30 lakhs as on March

312024, in respect of three joint ventures, whose financial statements have not been audited by us.

‘KPC House", Besides High Court Auditorium Gate, Sola, Ahmedabad - 380 060, Gujarat, India.
E-mail : services@kpcindia.com | Web : www.kpcindia.com
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the members af Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited

These Financial Statements have been audited by its respective independent auditors. The independent
auditor’s report on the financial statements of these entities have been furnished to us by the Management
and our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of these joint ventures are based solely on the reports of such auditors and the procedures

performed by us as stated in paragraph above.

Our opinion abave on the Consalidated Financial Statements is not modified in respect of the above matters

with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

2. The financials statement of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023 have been audited by the
predecessor auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements on November 24,

2023, Our report on the financial statements is not modified in respect of this matter.
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
1. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

(3) We have sought and cbtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and

belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid

-~

consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(¢) The consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the
consolidated Statement of Cash Flows far the year then ended dealt with by this Report are in agreement

with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements comply with the ind AS specified under section 133 of

the Act and the Rules thereunder, as amended.

(e) The Company being Government Company, provisions of sub section 2 of section 164 of the Companies

-~

Act, 2013 are not applicable as per Notification No. G.S.R.463 (E) dated 5th June, 2015,

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company with
reference to the financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate

Report in ‘Annexure A’ to this report.

“KPC House", Besides High Court Auditorium Gate, Sola, Ahmedabad - 380 060, Gujarat, India.
E-mail : services@kpcindia.com | Web : www.kpcindia.com
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the members of Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited

(g) The Company being Government Company, provisions of sub section 16 of section 197 of the Companies
Act, 2013 are not applicable as per Notification No. G.SR. 463(E) dated 5th June, 2015 of Ministry of

Corporate Affairs.

{h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the auditor's report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according

to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigation which would have impact on its consolidated

financial statements.

(i) The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for

material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts.

(iiiy The Company was not required to transfer any amount to the Investor Education and Protection Fund

during the year.

{iv) (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are
material either individually or in aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in
| any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘Intermediaries”), with the
| understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,

directly ar indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoeverl
' by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the

like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

{b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which
are material either individually or in aggregate) have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf

of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
!

"KPC House", Besides High Court Auditorium Gate, Sola, Anmedabad - 380 060, Gujarat, India.
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the members of Gujarat Rail Infactructure Development Corporation Limited

representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11 of the Combanies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,

2014, as provided in (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

() The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year, and hence, reporting under sub-

clause (f) of Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, is not applicable.

(vi) Based an our examination which inciuded test checks, and as communicated by the respective auditors
of joint venture companies, the Company and its joint venture companies incorporated in india have
used accouriling soflwaie fur migiiilaining its books of account, which have a feature of recording audit
trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for alf relevant transactions
recorded in the respective software.

Further, for the periods where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated throughout the
year for the respective accounting software, we and respective auditors of the above referred joint

venture companies did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with

2. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditar's Report) Order,
2020 ({the "CARO") issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, to be included
in the Auditor's report, according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO
reports issued by us for the Company and by the auditors of its joint venture companies included in the

consolidated financial statements of the Company, we report that there are no qualifications or adverse

remarks in these CARO repoits.

3. In terms of Section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in Annexure ‘B’ a statement on directions

issued under the aforesaid section by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

For Kantilal Patel & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 104744W

dot—

Mayank S. Shah

Partner

Membership No.: 044922
Place: Ahmedabad

Date: October 14, 2024
UDIN 2Uouayq9q22 BKETVRA 6316

“KPC House", Besides High Court Auditorium Gate, Sola, Ahmedabad - 380 060, Gujarat, India.
E-mail : services@kpcindia.com | Web : www.kpcindia.com
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KANTILAL PATEL & Co. CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Consolidated Financial Statements of
Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited

Referred to in paragraph 1(g) under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements section of our report of even
date to the members of Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited)

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated flnancial statements under
section 143(3)(i) of the Act

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company as of March 31, 2024 in
conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company and its joint venture companies
which are companies incorporated in India for the year ended on that date.

Management's responsibility for internal financial controls

The respective Board of Directors and managements of Company and joint venture companies, which are
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective Companies considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note') issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('the ICAI").
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note issued by the ICAl and the SAs
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those
SAs and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting with reference to the consolidated financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to the consolidated financial statements,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or

error,

"KPC House", Besides High Court Auditorium Gate, Sola, Ahmedabad - 380 060, Gujarat, India.
E-mail : services@kpcindia.com | Web : www.kpcindia.com
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KANTILAL PATEL & CO. CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Consolidated Financial Statements of
Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to the consolidated financial

statements.
Meaning of internal financial contrals over financial reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements includes those policies and procedures
that () pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (i) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisitian, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could
have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Inherent fimitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reparting
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may

deteriorate.
Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of reports of other auditors referred to in the Other matters paragraph below, the Company and joint
venture companies, which are companies incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to the consolidated financial statements and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICA

"KPC House”, Besides High Court Auditorium Gate, Sola, Ahmedabad - 380 060, Gujarat, India.
E-mail : services@kpcindia.com | Web : www.kpcindia.com
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Consolidated Financial Statements of
Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited

Other Matters

Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial cantrols
with reference to consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the three joint venture companies, which are
companies incorparated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated
in India.

For Kantilal Patel & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.. 104744W

Mayank S. Shah
Partner
Membership No.: 044922

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: October 14, 2024

UDIN: 2Uo4yq2BKETVAGITE

“"KPC House", Besides High Court Auditorium Gate, Sola, Ahmedabad - 380 060, Gujarat, India.
E-mail : services@kpcindia.com | Web : www.kpcindia.com
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Consolidated Financial Statements of
Guijarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited

To .
The Members

Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited

In continuation of our Independent Auditor's Report on consolidated financial statements of Gujarat Rail

Infrastructure De

t C

tion Limited ("The Company”), we have reported on Directions and Sub-

directions under 143 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 applicable for the year 2023-24, as under.

PART-1

Report under Section 143(5) of Companies Act, 2013 for the Financial Year 2023-24

(1)  MAIN DIRECTION:

Sr. oy rT]

Directions Comments

No.

1. Whether the Company has system in place to process all the
accounting transactions through Information Technology | Yes. Al Accounting transactions are
system? If yes, the implications of processing of accounting | processed through Information Technology
transactions outside IT system on the integrity of the | Systems. Therefore, there is no financial
accounts along with the financial implications, if any, may be | impfication on the integrity of the accounts.
stated,

2 Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan or
cases of waiver/write off of debts/loans/interest etc. made

Y Company has not taken any loan hence not
by a lender to the Company due to the Company’s inability N
to repay the loan? If yes, the financial impact may be stated. s
| Whether such cases are properly accounted for ?

3. Whether funds (grants/subsidy etc) received /receivable for | Company  has received grant  from
specific schemes from Central/State Government or its | Government of Gujarat, and it is accounted
agencies were properly accounted for/utilized as per its term forjutiiized as per its term and conditions
and conditions? List the cases of deviation. During the course of audit, we have not come

across any instances of deviation.

(2) SECTOR SPECIFIC DIRECTIONS: INFRASTRUCTURE SECTOR

:‘;. Sub-Directions Comments

1. Whether the Company has taken adequate measures to [ To the best of our knowledge and
prevent encroachment of idle land owned by it. Whether information provided to us during the course
any land of the Company is encroached, under litigation, | of audit company does not own any land as
not put to use or declared surplus? Details may be | onyear end.
provided.

2. Whether the system in vogue for identification of projects
tq be takeq up under El{bllc Private Partnership is in line Itis in line with the guidelines / policies of the
with the guidelines/ policies of the Government? Comment ) .

- Government and there is no deviation.
on deviation if any.

3 Whether system for monitoring the execution of works vis- | Company has adopted system to monitor the
a-vis the milestones stipulated in the agreement is in | execution of work and in our random checks,
existence and the impact of cost escalation, if any, | during the course of audit we have not come
revenues/ losses from contracts, etc, have been properly | across any such incident.
accounted for in the books.

L i 04 S
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4, Whether funds received/ receivable for specific schemes | Company has received the fund from state
from central/ State agencies were properly accounted | government for the purpose of projects to be
for/utilized? List the cases of deviations. taken up by the company. We found that it

was properly accounted far in the books of
account.

5. Whether the bank guarantees have been revalidated in | As per the information and explanation
time? provided to us, the company has not availed

any Bank Guarantee during the year.
However, the company has received Bank
Guarantees and the same has been
revalidated by the Company in time.

6 Comment on the confirmation of balances of trade | During the course of audit we have received
receivables, trade payables, term deposits, bank accounts | the balance confirmation of Liquid deposits
and cash obtained. with GSFS, current bank accounts, trade

receivables and cash balance.

7. The cost incurred on abandoned projects may be | As per the information and explanation
quantified and the amount actually written-off shall be | provided to us, there are no abandoned
mentioned, projects therefore this point is not applicable.

For Kantilal Patel & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 104744W

Mayank S. Shah

Partner

Membership No.: 044922

WA,

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: October 14, 2024

WIN: 240644922 BRETVREG F6
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Gujarat Rall Infrastructure Development Corporation Ltd.
CIN:U74999GJ20175GC095040
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024
{Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars Note As at As at
No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Plant and Equipment 4 242.95 275.82
Intangible Assets 5 - -
Right of Use Asset - Leasehold Office 4 7.63 22.90
Financial Assets
(i} Investments in JoInt Ventures 6 35639.94 35840.86
(ii) Other Financial Assets 7 - -
Deferred Tax Assets {Net) 8 - -
Income Tax Assets (Net) 14 109.92 41,83
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 36000.44 36181.41
CURRENT ASSETS
Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 9 202.80 363.13
(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 3622.56 1705.99
(ili) Other Balances with bank 11 16625.85 25059.22
(lv) Loan 12 - -
(v) Other Financial Assets 13 235.33 267,96
Other Current Assets 16 211.86 202.27
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 20898.40 2759907
TOTAL ASSETS 56898.84 63780.48
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equlty share capltal 17 9900.00 8376.47
Other equl 18 36125.09 36664.20
|TOTRL EQUITY A46025.09 45040.67
LIABILITIES
Share Application Money Pending for Allotment 19 0.00 797.53
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financal liabllities
(i) Other financial liabllities
- Lease Llability 20 0.00 9.36
Deferred Gavernment Grant 21 7410.18 17437.74
Defered Tax Habllities ?Net] 8 0.60 0.90
TOTAL NON-CURENT LIABILITIES 7410.78 18245.53
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financlal liabilltles
{i) Yrade Payable Due to : 22
MSME
Other -
Disputed Dues - MISME -
Disputed Dues - Other - -
{ii) Other tinancial Liabilitles 23 0.00
- Lease Llability 9.36 17.44
- Other financial Liabilltles 1317.65 329.06
Provisions 24 52.07 102.41
Deferred Government Grant 25 31.82 3287
Other current Habllites 28 2052.07 12.50
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 3462.97 494.28
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 56898.84 63780.48
Material acc ing policies & See accompanying 1to 54
Note to Consolidated Financlal Stat
Nates on accounts form integral part of the Consolidated Fi | 1
As per our report of even date
For Kantilal Patel & Co o\ PATE, For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants /<" g
ERN, {0A790W <
L
Mayank S Shah S'N\Joshi  Ankita Christian S
Partner CFO Director Managing Director
Membarship No. 044922 DIN: 09043461 DIN: 013002794
UDIN: 210 L@ 22 B G I¥ AET T
Place: Ahmedabad Place: Gandhinagar
Date: 14/10/2024 Date: 14/10/2024
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A
Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Ltd.
CIN:U74999GJ20175GC095040
C lidated Stat t of Profit and Loss for the year ended on March 31, 2024
(Amount in Lakhs)
Note For the Period from For the Period from
Particulars No Aprll 01, 2023 to March Aprll 01, 2022 to March
31, 2024 31, 2023
Income
Revenue from operations 27 632.86 837.15
Other income 28 535.99 483.54
Total Income 1168.85 1320.69
Expenses
Employee benefit expense, payment to contractors and 29 S 247.61
consultants
Finance costs 30 1.80 337
Depreciation and amortisation expense 31 48.14 52.56
Other expenses 32 566,33 791.32
Total expenses 867.24 1094.86
Profit /(Loss) before exceptional item and taxes 301.61 225.83
Exceptional Item ( Net of Tax) 0.00 -
Share of Profit/(Loss) of Joint Ventures 35 (1364.30) (184.42)
Profit/(loss) before tax (1062.69) 41.41
Tax expense
Current tax 15 84.25 59.39
Deferred Tax Expense / (Income) 8 (0.30) 3.56
Total Tax Expenses 83.95 62.95
Profit/(loss) after tax for the period (1146.64) (21.54)
Other comprehensive income
(i) items that may not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i)  Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassifled to profit or loss 0.00 0.00
{iii}  Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 0.00 0.00
(iv)  Income tax relating to items that may be reclassified to profit or loss 0.00 0.00
Total comprehensive income/(Loss) for the year (Net of Tax) 0.00 0.00
Tatal comprehensive income for the period (1146.64) {21.58)
Earnings per Equity share of Face Value of Rs. 10 each 33
Basic (1,29) (0.03)
Diluted {1.29) {0.03})
Material accounting policies & See accompanying Note to 1to54
Consolidated FInancial Statements
Notes on accounts form-integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
As per our report of even date
For Kantllal Patel & Ca For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
FRW " "
-
&/// . ' M
Mayank S Shah
Partner Al S. N\ oshi Ankita Christian S agal
Membership No. 044922 g ,:l’t;{ CFO Director Managing Director
UDIN: DIN: 09043461 DIN: 09002794
2u0 uyy22 BKE IvA 643
Place: Ahmedabad Place: Gandhinagar
Date: 14/10/2024 Date: 14/10/2024
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Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Carporation Ltd.
CIN:U74599G12017SGC095040
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY AS ON MARCH 31, 2024

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

{Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars Amount
As at April 1, 2022 8376.47
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior perlod errors .
ﬁnomw Balance as at April 1, 2022 -
|Changes during the year 2022-23 -
As at March 31, 2023 8376.47
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors -
Restated Balance as at Aprll 1, 2023 =
Changes during the year 2023-24 1523.53
As at 31st March 2024 5900.00

B. OTHER EQUITY
(Amount in Lakhs)

Reserves and Surplus
Capital
Capital Reserve Redemption Retained Earnings
Reserve
Balance as at April 1, 2022 . . - 104.63 = 104.61
Profit for the year . . a 162.98 - 162.88

Equity Instr
through other Total
comprehensive income

Particulars General
Reserve

Re-measurement of defined benefit plans (net of tax) . < . . =
Other comprehensive income for the year . - - & - .

Total comprehenslve income for the year - - B 267.49 - 262.49
Payment of dividend . - . . -
Transfer to General reserve - - - - - -

Balance as at March 31, 2023 - - - 267.49 - 267.49
Profit for the year - . . 217.63 - 217.63

Re-measurement of defined benefit plans (nat of tax) - - -
Other comprehensive income for the year - - .
Total comprehensive Income for the year - - . 485,12 - 485.12
Payment of dividend - . 5 = = =

Transfer to General reserve . - N 5 =
|Balance as at March 31, 2024 - - . 485.12 - 485.12

see accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

Nates on accounts form Intagral part of the C lidated F ial Stat
As per our report of even date
For KantHal Patel & Co Far and on behalf of the Board of Directars

Chartered Accountants
! &5 /‘
Mayank § Shah A o .ﬁ- Noshl Ankita Christian rate—

FRN. 104744W

Partner i ‘L(p\ cFo Diractar Managing Director
Membership No. 044922 DIN: 09043461 DIN: 09002794
uoin: 2u0 W A2LLBKETVA€IIG

Place: Ahmedabad Place: Gandhinagar
Date: 14/10/2024 Date: 14/10/2024

"/'




8 G - H I DE 7" Annual Report

=N

Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Ltd.
CIN:U74939GJ20175GC095040
C | Cash Flow 5 for the year ended March 31, 2024

[Amount In Lakhs)|
For the Period from Far the Perlod from

Particulars April 01, 2023 to March April 01, 2022 to March
31,2024 31,2003
1 Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Profit/(Loss) before tax as per Statement of Profit & Loss 301.61 225,83
Adjusted for:-
Interest Income (1427.63) (700.46)
Finance Cost 1,80 337
Government Grant Income {32.87) {37.30)
Depreciation / Amortisation 48.14 52.56
(Profit)/Loss of Jaint Venture 136430 184.42
Interest payable to GOG 924,59 255,71
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 1179.93 lxsssu
Adjusted for Movement in Working Capital:
{Increase)/ Decrease in Other Current Assets (9.09) (150.69)
(Increase)/ Decrease in Trade Recelvable 160.32 (99.33)
{Increase)/ Decrease in Other Financial Assets 8464.48 (25090.33)
Increase/ (Decrease) in Current Other Financial Liability 31971 4278
Increase/ (Decrease) in Non Current Other Financial Liability 0.00 1.04
Increase/ (Decrease) |n Provisions 1429.65 54,25
Increase/ {Decrease) in Other current liabilities 559.58 (4.76]
Operating Profit after Working Capital Changes 12104.58 (15?.62.!0"
Taxes Paid {Net of TDS) [152.34) 199,68
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 11952.24 (25063.22)
2 Cash Flows from Investing Actlvities:
Purchase of Fixed Asset Including capital work In :
progress & intangible asset 0.00 |5.21)
Investment in loint Venture/Associate Company (2527.68) (11704.94)
interest Recelved 1429.15 484.24
Net cash used in Investing activities (B} (1098.53) (11225.92)
3 cash flow from financine activities :
Proceeds From Share Capital 726.00 192.16
Praceeds from Application Money pending allotement 0.00 51.00
Proceeds from Government Grant 12000.00 22209.16
Grant paid to SPV {11000.00) 0,00
Grant utilised for SPV Project Payment {10388.20) 0,00
Flnance cost paid {255.71) {96.99)
Loan Given to Joint Venture {14491,57) 0,00
Loan Received back from Joint Venture 14491.57 0.00
Repayment/ Increase lease liabllities (19.23} 115.851
Net cash used in financing actlvitles (C) @237.!.4] 2233947
Net Increase In cash and cash equivalents {A)+(B)+{C) 1916.57 {13349.67)
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 1705.99 15655.56
Cash and cash equivalents as at end of the year 3622.56 1705.99
—— ———
Break up of cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
Cash in hand 0.11 0.00
Balances with Banks-In Current Accounts 2255.95 836,52
Balance with GSFS - Liquid Deposit 1366.50 B69.47
3622.56 1705.99
Notes:

1 Cash and cash equlvalent include cash and bank balances and deposits with the Bank (Maturity less than 3 months).
2 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect method’ as set out in the Ind AS - 7 Statement of Cash
Flow.

As per our report of even date attached,

For Kantlial Patel & Co
Chartered Accountants

s o B

Makank 5 Shah
Partner
Membership No. 044922
UDIN:
2K eLuq22 8i<EIVAEQIC

Place: Ahmedabad Place: Gandhinagar
Date: 14/10/2024 Date: 14/10/2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

. N.pshi kita Christlan Sandip Sagale

CFO Director Managing Director
DIN: 09043461 DiIN: 09002794
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Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

1. Corporate Information

Guijarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited (G-RIDE) is a Joint Venture of Government of
Gujarat and Ministry of Railways, incorporated under provision of the Companies Act, 2013 on 06th January
2017.

G-RIDE has been incorporated for development of Rail Infrastructure for critical connectivity and capacity
enhancement in the state of Gujarat.

2. The Consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with resolution of the Directors
on 26" September 2023.

3 (1) Basis of Preparation

These Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain
financial instruments which are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date.

a) Stateiment of Compliance

These Consaolidated Financial Statements of the company have been prepared to comply with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) including the rules notify under the relevant provision of the Companies Act, 2013, amended
from time to time.

Details of the Company’s accounting policies are included in Note 3(ii).
b) Functional and Presentation Currency

These Consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%), which is also the Company’s
functional currency.

¢) Principles of consolidation and equity accounting Assaciate/Joint Venture

Inveslment in associale/Joint Venlute has been accounted for using Equity Method in accordance with ind AS
28-Investment in Associates and Joint ventures. Under the Equity Method of Accounting, the investments are
initially recognized as cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize the group’s share of post-acquisition profit or
less of the investee in profit and loss, and the group’s share of other comprehensive income of the investee in
other compiehensive income.

Any excess / Short of the amount of investment in associate/ loint Venture over the cost of acquisition at the
date of investment is considered as capital reserve and has been included in carrying amount of investment and
disclosed separately. The carrying amount of investment is adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition changes
in the share if net asset of associate.

When the group’s share of loss in equity-accounted Investment equal or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the group does not recognize further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payment on behalf of the other entity.

The Consolidated Financial Statement of Joint Ventures are prepared up to the same reporting date as that of
the company i.e. 315 March 2024 for the current year, 31% March 2023 for the Comparative year.

e T
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Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

d) Use of Estimates and Judgments

In preparing these Consolidated Financial Statements, management has made judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Critical Estimates and Judgments

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of
items which are more likely to be materfally adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be
different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is
included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in
the Consolidated financial statements.

Areas Involving critical estimates or judgements are:

Depreciation and amortization are based on management estimates of the future useful lives of the
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets. Estimates may change due to technological
developments, competition, changes in market conditions and other factors and may result in changes
in the estimated useful life and in the depreciation and amortization charge.

®  Other areas are as below:

- Estimation of current and deferred tax expense and payable:

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is regarded as probable that deductible
temporary differences can be realized. The Company estimates deferred tax assets and liabilities based
on current tax laws and rates and in certain cases, business plans, including management’s expectations
regarding the manner and timing of recovery of the related assets. Changes in these estimates may
affect the amount of deferred tax liabilities or the valuation of deferred tax assets and thereby the tax

charge in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Provision for tax liabilities require judgements on the interpretation of tax legislation, developments in
case laws and the potential outcomes of tax audits and appeals which may be subject to significant
uncertainty. Therefore, the actual results may vary from expectations resulting in adjustments to
provisions, the valuation of deferred tax assets, cash tax settlements and therefore the tax charge in
the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies:

From time to time, the Company is subject to legal proceedings and other contingencies the ultimate
outcome of each being always subject to many uncertainties inherent in litigation. A provision for
expense is made when it is considered probable that a payment will be made, and the amount of the
loss can be reasonably estimated.

Significant judgement is made when evaluating, among other factors, the probability of unfavourable
outcome and the ability to make a reasonable estimate of the amount of potential loss. Expense
provisions are reviewed at each accounting period and revisions made for the changes in facts and
circumstances.

Impairment of Assets:

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets that are subject to depreciation/ amortization are
tested for impairment periodically including when events occur or changes in circumstances indicate
that the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying value. The recoverable
amount of cash generating units is higher of value-in-use and fair value less cost to sell. The calculation
involves use of significant estimates and assumptions which includes turnover and earnings multiples,
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growth rates and net margins used to calculate projected future cash flows, risk-adjusted discount rate,
future economic and market conditions.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized prospectively.

e) Measurement of Fair Values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values, for both
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hlerarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
techniques as follows.

- Level 1: quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly {i.e., derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair
value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value
hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between ieveis of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period
during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the note of financial
instruments.

3 (ii) Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the period presented in these
Consolidated financial statements.

a. Foreign Currency Transactions:

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the Company at the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the average rate approximates the
actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencles are translated into the functional currency
at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. !

Exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss, except exchange differences arising from the
translation of the following items which are recognized in OCl:

- Equity investments at fair value through OCI (FVOCI);

- qualifying cash flow hedges to the extent that the hedges are effective.
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b. Financial Instruments:

Recognition and Initial Measurement

Trade receivables are initially recognized when they are originated: All other financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Financial Assets at amortized cost- These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Any gains or loss or derecognition
is affected in profit or loss statement

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) - All equity investments are
measured at fair values. Investments which are not held for trading purposes and where the Company has
exercised the option to classify the investment as at FVTOCI, all fair value changes on the investment are
recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). The accumulated gains or losses are recognized in OC!
are reclassified to retained earnings on sale of such investment.

Financial assets at Fair Value through Profit and loss (FVTPL) - These assets are subsequently measured at
fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognized in profit or loss.

Classification, Subsequent Measurement and Gains and Losses: Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest method. For trade
and other payable maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying value approximates
fair value due to short maturity of these investments.

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the company after
deducting all of its liabilities. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of equity instruments
are recognized as a deduction from equity instrument net of any tax effects.

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownershlp and does nat
retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet but
retains either all or substantially ali of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets
are not derecognized.
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erecognition: Financial Liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled
or expired.

The Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under
the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognized at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognized in profit or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when,
and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

c. Current and Non-Current Classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification.
An asset is treated as current when it is:

(a) expected to be reaiised in or is intended to be sold or consumed in Company’s normal operating cycle.

{b} held primarily for the purpose of being traded.

(c) expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

{d) cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
12 months after the reporting date.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A Liability is current when:

{a) itis expected to be settled in Company’s normal operating cycle.

(b) itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded.

(c) itis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

(d) The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12

months after the reporting date.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Operating Cycle

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or
cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

d. Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition and Measurement
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs,
less accumulated depreciation, and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an Item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and
——.__hon-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of
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bringing the item to its working conditlon for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and
removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and
direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended
use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items {major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it Is probable that the future economic benefits associated with
the expenditure will flow to the Company.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight line basis based on the rates as per
useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.

Assets costing less than INR 25,000 each are fully depreciated in the year of capltalization from the Financial
Year 2020-21 onwards.

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e., from (up to) the date on which asset
is ready for use (disposed of).

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if
appropriate. In case of a revision, the unamortized depreciable amount is charged over the revised remaining
useful life.

Losses arising from retirement or gains or losses arising from disposal of fixed assets which are carried at cost
are recognized In the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Capital work in progress includes expenditure incurred on assets which are yet to be commissioned. All the
directly identifiable and ascertainable expenditure, incidental and related to asset incurred during the period of
construction asset, till it is ready for use, is kept as capital work in progress (CWIP) and after commissioning the
same is transferred / allocated to respective "fixed assets".

Useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment for providing depreciation as estimated by the management are
as below:

Computers (End user devices) - 3 years

Computers (Server & Network) - 6 years

Office Equipment {including Kitchen Equlpment) - 5 years
Furniture & Fixture - 10 years

Electrical Installations & Equipment- 10 years

Leasehold Building- 30 years

e. Intangible Assets
Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured initially at cost.

After initial recognition, an intangible asset is carried at its cost less any accumulated amortization and any
accumulated impairment loss.
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Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits from the specific asset
to which it relates.

Intangible assets are amortized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss over their estimated useful lives,
from the date that they are available for use based on the expected pattern of consumption of economic benefits
of the asset. Accordingly, at present, these are being amortized on straight line basis.

Amortization method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted
if appropriate.

Useful lives of intangible assets for providing amortization as estimated by the management are as below:
Website, Software & Licenses - 3 years

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
and disposal.

Losses arising from retirement and gains or losses arising from disposal of an intangible asset are measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in
the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

f. Leases

As a lessee, the company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement
date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct
costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or the site on which it
Is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the Straight-line method from the commencement
date to the earller of the end of the useful life of the rlght-of -use asset or the end of the lease lerm. The
astimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of Property, Plant &
Equipment. In addition, the right-of -use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and
adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability.

The lease Liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate as per standard.

Lease Payments inciuded in the measurement of the iease iiabiiity comprise the Fix payments, inciuding in-
subsequent fixed payments. The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. When the lease liability is remeasured, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in profit and loss if the carr\)ing amount of the right-of- use asset has
been reduced to zero. The company presents right-of-use assets (Lease hold building) as separate line item
in Non-Current Assets and lease liabillties in 'Other financial liability' in the balance sheet.

g. Impairment

Impairment of Financial Instruments

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at
amortized cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost are
credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime
expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument.
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When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all cash shortfalls {i.e., the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

=

rite-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there
is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventaries and deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists,
then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount being higher of the net selling
price or value in use. Value in use is determined from the present value of the estimated future cash flows
from the continuing use of the assets.

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognized immediately in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. When an
impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset {or a cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized
for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized
immediately in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

h. Finance Cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign currency
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection
with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset
which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized as part
of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

i. Borrowing

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a
material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of reporting period with the effect
that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the Company does not classify the
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liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the
Consolidated financial statement for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.
j. Revenue from Contracts with Customers {refer note no.46 & 47)
Company Recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five-step as set out in Ind AS- 115:-
{i) |dentify contracts with a customer: - A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more

parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract
that must be met.

(ii) Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a
contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.
{iii) Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the

company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a
customer excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

{iv) Allocate the transaction price to the pertormance obligations in the contract: For a contract that
has more than one performance obligation the Company allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the
Company expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

{v) Recognise revenue when or as the Company satisfies a performance obligation.

Other Revenue Recognition:

(i) Interest income is accounted on accrual basis. Interest earned on Government of Gujarat Grant is shown as
"Interest Payable tc GOG". Hence, the same has not been recognized as an income of the company.
{ii) Unbilled revenue represents value of service performed in accordance with the contract terms but not billed.

k. Government Grants

Government grants are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
all the attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized
as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Government grants, whose primary conditlon is that the Company should purchase, construct or otherwise
acquire non-current assets are recognized and disclosed as 'deferred income' under non-current liability
in the Balance Sheet and transferred to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic
and rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

On receipt of Grant/Contribution from Government of Gujarat for investment in SPV's is recognized as
"Other reserve for Investment in Joint Venture" under the head of "Other Equity”.

l. Investment in Joint Venture

The Company's investment in its Joint Venture/ Associates is carried at cost net of accumulated impairment
loss, if any. On disposal of the Investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount is charged or credited to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

m. Provisions (other than Employee Benefits)

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present obligation that can be
estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the legal
of contractual obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows
(representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance
sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
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risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognized as finance cost. Expected future
operating losses are not provided for.

Contingencies

Provision in respect of loss contingencies relating to claims, litigation, assessment, fines, penalties, etc. are
recognized when it Is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount can be estimated reliably.

n. Contingent Liablilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence
of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-accurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it
is either not prabable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle, or a reliable estimate of the
amount cannot be made.

0. Income Taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. it is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it
relates to an item recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current Tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax
reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the
uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts, and it is intended to realize the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

Tax benefits of deductions earned on exercise of employee stock options in excess of compensation charged
to Income are credited to other comprehensive income.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is also recognized in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred tax is not
recognized for:

- Temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabllities in a transaction that affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit/loss at the time of the transaction.
Taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable
profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognizes a
deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is
convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax
asset can be realized. Deferred tax assets — unrecognized or recognized, are reviewed at each reporting date
and are recognized/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the
related tax benefit will be realized.
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Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized
or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow fram the manner in which
the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable
entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

Deferred tax in respect of timing differences which reverse after the tax holiday period is recognized in the
year in which the timing differences originate.

p. Earnings per Share

Basic earnings/ (loss) per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributabie to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for events of bonus
issue and share split. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings/ (loss) per share, the net profit or loss
for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

q. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

For the purpose of the Consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are consldered an integral
part of the Company’s cash management.

r. Events after the Reporting Period

Adjusting events are events that provide turther evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the
reporting period. The Consalidated financial statements are adjusted for such events before authorization
for issue. Non-adjusting events are events that are indicative of conditions that arose after the end of the
reporting period. Non-adjusting events after the reporting date are not accounted but disclosed.

s. Statement of cash flows
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or
payments. Cash flow for the year are classified by operating, investing, and financing activities.

t. General
Any other accounting policy not specificaily referred to are in consistent with the generally accepted
agecountipg principles.
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Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Ltd.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ending on March 31, 2024

{Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

6 Investment in Joint Ventures- Non Current
In Equity Shares of Joint Venture
Unquoted, fully paid up

Investments in equity shares carried at cost (Fully Paid)

Unqguoted Equity Shares

35,37,99,000 {P.Y 34,24,55,202) Fully Paid up Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each of 35379.90 34245.52

Bahucharaji Rail Corporation Limited (BRCL)

Less: Share of Profit/(Loss) in Associates/Joint venture of F.Y 2019-20 (41.00) (41.00)
Share of Profit/(Loss) in Joint Venture of F.Y 2020-21 7.89 7.89

Share of Profit/(Loss) in Joint Venture of F.Y 2021-22 24.16 24.16

Share of Profit/{Loss) in Joint Venture of F.Y 2022-23 (144.70) (144.70)
Share of Profit/(Loss) in Joint Venture of F.Y 2023-24 (1270.82) 0.00

33955.43 34091.87

Unquoted Equity Shares

1,82,90,000 (P.Y 1,80,00,000) Fully Paid up Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each of 1829.00 1800.00

G-RIDE Bedi Port Rail Limited (GBPRL)

Share of Profit/{Loss) in Joint Venture of F.Y 2021-22 {11.98) {11.98)

Share of Profit/{Loss) in Joint Venture of F.Y 2022-23 (38.41) (38.41)

Share of Profit/{Loss) in Joint Venture of F.Y 2023-24 (93.43) 0.00
1685.18 1749.61

Unquoted Equity Shares

10,000 (P.Y 10,000) Fully Paid up Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each of G-RIDE Hazira Rail 1.00 1.00
Limited (GHRL)

Share of Profit/(Loss} in Joint Venture of F.Y 2021-22 {0.30) (0.30)
Share of Profit/(Loss} in Joint Venture of F.Y 2022-23 {1.32) {1.32)
Share of Profit/{Loss) in Joint Venture of F.Y 2023-24 (0.05) 0.00
(0.67) (0.62)

Share Application Money Pending for Allotment =5 =
Extent of Holding In BRCL** 42.34% 55.95%
Extent of HoldIng in GBPRL*** 26.01% 25.70%
Extent of Holding in GHRL**** 100.00% 100.00%
Place of business/ country of incorporation India India
Description of method used to account for the investments (Cost or fair value) At Cost At Cost
Total 35639.94 35840.86

Total Investments Non-Current 35639.94 35840.86
Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments = -
Market Value of Quoted Investments »2 ==
Aggregate amount of Unguoted Investments 35639.94 35840.86

** In Current Financial Year 2023-24, as per the terms of share holders agreement (SHA) G-Ride is required to subscribe share of
BRCL to the extent of 45% only. Due to delay in subscription by ather shareholders of BRCL, G-Ride's holding in shares of BRCL
was decrease from 45% ( As per SHA) to 42.34% as at 31st March 2024,G-Ride does not entitled to enjoy control over BRCL,
Since decisions on fundamental matters of BRCL can be taken by obtaining Unanimous concurrence of all share holders &
decision making for reserved matters ( As prescribed under Schedule 1 to SHA) which are fundamental to the BRCL's operations
shall require affirmative vote of each shareholder of BRCL. As all shareholders of BRCL jointly controls the operations of BRCL ,
’{gfri.\gﬁ%utnt jin BRCL is treated as Investment in Joint venture,
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Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Ltd.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ending on March 31, 2024

(Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

*** |n Current Financial Year 2023-24, as per the terms of State GR No. MIS/102021/UOR-4/124472/i-1 dated 01/07/2021 G-
Ride is required to subscribe share of GBPRL to the extent of 26% only which comes to Rs. 1829 Lakhs out of which GOG portion
comes to Rs. 1029 Lakhs as cash equity model & MOR portion comes to Rs. 800 Lakhs as without cash equity model (as Land).
Out of GOG's Portion GOG has invested Rs. 1029 Lakhs in GBPRI & Equity Share Contribution of Ministry of Railways {(MOR) as
Land through G-Ride is completed as on balance sheet date.

****|n Current Financial Year 2023-24, as per the terms of State GR No. MiS/102021/UOR-06/1-1 dated 03/07/2021 2021 issued
by Government of Gujarat, SPV is created for execution and operation and Management of the New Gothangam (DFC Yard) to
Hazira Last Mile Rail Connectivity project in the state of Gujarat. G-Ride has invested Rs. 1 Lakhs as initial subscription.

7 Other Financial Assets - Current
Capital Advance - Nike Design 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00

8 Deferred tax Asset/ (Liabilities)

Deférred Tax Assels (Net) - opening 0.90 2.66
Deferred tax Asset/ (Liabilities) 0.90 2.66
Deferred tax Asset / (Liability) relating to Prelimany Exp, Property, Plant & Equipment's, (0.30) 3.56
Right of Use Building, Lease Liability '

Deferrad tax Asset/ {Liabilities) 0.60 0.90

9  Trade receivables**
Less than 6 months
Undisputed Trade Receivable - Considered good 101.12 142.67
Undisputed Trade Receivable - Which have significant increase in credit risk - -
Undisputed Trade Receivable - Credit impaired - -
Disputed Trade Receivable - Considered good - -
Disputed Trade Receivable - Which have significant increase in credit risk
Disputed Trade Receivable - Credit impaired

6 months - 1year = -4
1-2 years - -
2-3 years - o
More than 3 years = =

Unbilled Revenue* 101.68 220.46
Total 202.80 363.13

*Project Management Cansultancy Charges accrued from BRCL for the month of March 2024, but billed in F.Y 2024-25, hence

booked as Unbilled Revenue Income in current year.

**Refer Note No. 41
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Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Ltd.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ending on March 31, 2024

{Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2024  March 31, 2023

10  Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash in Hand 0.11 -
Balances with banks
In Current Account-S8I 107.33 88.54
In Share Application Money Account-SBI - 746.53
In Current Account-YES Bank 0.15 0.46
YES Bank -Debit Card 1.00 0.99
In Current Account - BOB 2147.47 -
Balance with GSFS - Liquid Deposit 1366.50 869.47
Total 3622.56 1705.99

11  Other Balances with Banks

Inter corporate deposit with GSFS 2271.03 25059,22
FD with Banks 14354.82 --
16625.85 25059.22

12 Loans-Current
Loans Receivables Considered Goods - Unsecured
Loans to related parties

-Bahucharaji Rail Corporation Limited F.Y 2023-24

Loan Given 11800.00

Loan Received Back {11800.00) - -

-G-Ride Bedi Port Rail Limited(GBPRL) F.Y 2023-24

Loan Given 2691.57

Loan Received Back (2691.57) - -
Total - »=

13  Other Financial Assets - Current

Interest Receivable From GSFS 54.81 236.79
Interest Receivable From Torrent Power 0.11 0.07
Other Advance - GIDB 0.00 30.00
Other Advance - Harsiddhi Travels 0.00 1.10
Interest Receivable From GBPRL 124.26 0.00
Interest Receivable From SBI FD 56.15 0.00

Total 235.33 267.96

14 Income Tax Asset (Net)
Advance Income Tax = *

Income Tax & TDS receivable 194.17 101.22

Less:

Income Tax Provision F.Y 2023-24 (84.25) (59.39)
Total 109.92 41.83
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Guijarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Ltd.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ending on March 31, 2024
{Amount in Lakhs}

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

15 TAXATION
TAX EXPENSE RECOGNISED IN STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS

Current Tax 84.25 59.39
Deferred Tax Expense/ (Income) (0.30) 3.56
Total Tax Expense Recognised in Current Year 83.95 62.95

The Tax Expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Profit/(Loss) Before Tax and Exceptional Item 301.61 225.83
Applicable Tax Rate 27.82% 27.82%
Computed Tax Expense 83.91 62.82
TAX EFFECT OF:

Expense disallowed 13.89 15.56
Expense allowable (13.56) (14.85)
B/f Business loss Allowable 0.00 (4.15)
Additional Allowance net if MAT Credit - -
Current Tax Provision 84.25 59.39
Tax Expense Recognised in statement of Profit & Loss Account 84.25 59.39
Effective Tax Rate 28% 26%

Tax on Exceptional Item - =

16 Other Current Assets
Balances with Revenue Authorities receivable in Cash or kind

GST receivable 178.77 197.20
Receivable from Rafleshwar 2.60 0.00
Salary Receivable 1.82 0.00
Other Receivable 21.55 0.00
Deposits 0.00
Security Deposit- Hardik Gas Agency 0.02 0.02
Security Deposit- BSNL 0.05 0.05
Security Deposit- Torrent Power Ltd. 1.80 1.80
Security Deposit- Nituben M Tulsiyani 1.00 0.00
Prepaid expense 4.25 3.70

Total 211.86 202,77
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Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Ltd.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ending on March 31, 2024

{Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

17

U]

{ii)

(iii)

(iv)

{v)

Equity Share Capital
Authorised

50,00,00,000 (Previous year 10,00,00,000) equity shares of % 10 each 50000.00 50000.00
50000.00 50000.00

Issued, subscribed and Paid up Capital
9,90,00,000 equity shares of X 10 each, fully paid up 9900.00 8376.47
(Previous year 8,37,64,706 shares of X 10 each, fully paid up)

Total 9900.00 8376.47
Notes:
Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the period
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23

{Amtin Lakhs)  (No of shares) (Amtin Lakhs) {No of shares} |

At the beginning of the year 8376.47 83764 706 5100.00 510 00 000
Add: Issued during the year 1523.53 152 35294 3276.47 32764706
Outstanding at the end of the year 9900.00 9 90 00 000 8376.47 8 37 64 706

Terms/rights attached to equity shares

- The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of % 10 per share.

- Each holder of the equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

- In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive assets of the Company
remaining after settlement of all liabilities. The distribution will be in proportion of the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders.

Allotment of Shares
-During the Current Financial Year Company has allotted 3,27,64,706 number of Equity Share of Rs. 10 each to below promoter:

-Government of Gujarat (GoG) 1,67,10,000 Equity Share of Rs. 10 each
-Government of India (Gol)-(Ministry of Railway) 1,60,54,706 Equity Share of Rs. 10 each

The details of shareholders holding more than 5 % of issued share capltal is set out below:

Name of Shareholder As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

No. of shares % holding No. of shares % holding
Government of Gujarat (GoG) 504 90 000 51.00% 42720000 83.76%
Government of India (Gol)- 485 10 000 49,00% 410 44 706 80.48%

(Ministry of Railways)

Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters

Promoter Name As at March 31, 2024 % Changes
No. of shares % of total shares | during the year
Government of Gujarat (GoG]) 5 04 90 000 51.00% NIL
Government of India [Gol}- (Ministry of Railways) 4 85 10 000 49.00% NiL
Promoter Name As at March 31, 2023 % Changes
No. of shares % of total shares | during the year
Government of Gujarat (GoG) 42720000 51.00% NIL
Government of India (Gol)- (MInistry of Railways) 410 44 706 49.00% NIL
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Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Ltd.
Notes to Consolidated FInancial Statements for the year ending on March 31, 2024

{Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

18 Other Equity
Retained Earnings

Opening Balance of retained earnings 61.83 83.37
Reversal of earlier years losses atributable to Trade Receivable 0.00 -
Net (Loss) / profit for the current year (1146.64) (21.54)
Closing Balance 1084.81 61.83
1084.81 61.83

Other Reserve for investment in Joint Venture

Share of Ministry of Rallways- GOI 18136.15 18136.15
Share of Government of Gujarat 19073.75 18466.22

37209.90 36602.37
Total Other Equity 36125.09 36664.20

19 Share Application Money Pending for Allotment
Share Application Money Pending for Allotment 0.00 797.53
0.00 797.53

20 Other financial liabilities-Non Current
Lease Liability (Refer Sch No. 40) 0.00 9.36
Total 0.00 9.36

21 Deferred Government Grant

Government Grant Deferred Income 205.91 237.74
Grant-in-aid from GOG* 7204.27 17200.00
Total 7410.18 17437.74

*Refer Note No. 48
22 Trade Payable-Current

Less than 1 Year
{i) MSME . A
(i) Others - -
(iii) Disputed Dues - MSME - --
(iv) Disputed Dues - Others N A

1-2 Years = N
2-3 years - an
More than 3 Years . |

Total ( A+B) = N

The Company's exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to Trade Payables covered in Note 41.
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(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

23  Other Financial Liabilities-Current

- Lease Liability

Current maturity of lease liability (Refer Sch No.40)* 9.36 17.44

* Current maturity of lease liability
Lease liability unpaid 0.00 0.00
Total 9.36 17.44

- Other Financial Liabilities
Interest Payable to GOG 924.59 255.71

Earnest Money Deposit

Systra MVA consulting 4.00 4.00
Bhagwati Construction 0.00 50.00
Trupal J Patel & co. 0.00 0.00
AB Enterprise 0.00 1.50

Retention Money

Feedback Infra Pvt. Ltd 17.05 17.05
S P Infracon - P R Patel & Co 371.01 0.00
Trupal ) Patel & Co 0.10 0.00

Creditors for expenses

Ishak Patahan 0.06 0.00
Western Railway Officer CL 0.30 0.01
Research & Consultancy A/C SVNIT 0.54 0.54
Bid Security Payable to GBPRL 0.00 0.25

Total 1317.65 329.06
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ending on March 31, 2024
(Amount in Lakhs)

Partlculars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

24 Provisions-Current

Consultancy / Professional Charges Payable 2.34 8.03
Directors Meeting Exp Payable 0.00 0.35
Electricity exps. Payable 0.28 0.48
Printing & Stationary Exp Payable 0.60 0.00
Feasibility Expene Payable 0.00 29.87
Foreign Service Charges Payable 4.27 6.90
Secretarial Audit Fees Payable 0.63 0.54
Interest on gst payable 0.00 0.17
Internal Audit Fees Payable 1.08 1.08
Man Power Service Exp Payable 5.39 10.71
Statutory Audit Fees Payable 0.90 0.90
Vehicle Hire Charges Payable 4,50 4.95
Professional Fees for Project finance team- payable 4,66 1.71
Security Hire Exps. Payable 0.01 0.46
Telephone exps. 0.02 0.09
Rent Payable A/c 4,50 4.33
Provision For Expense A/c 0.00 30.00
PMC Expense KTRD-BHRJ Payable A/c 18.19 0.00
Repairs & Maintenance expense payable 3.52 0.96
Stiped Exp Payable 0.00 0.25
Office Expense payable 1.11 0.63

Total 52.07 102.41

25 Deferred Government Grant

Government Grant Deferred Income 31.82 32.87

Total 31.82 32.87

26  Other current liabilities
(i) Statutory Dues Payable

GST Payable RCM 0.00 1.03
Gandhinagar Municipal Corp - Prof Tax 0.00 0.01
GST TDS payabie 23.03 1.64
TDS Payable 4211 8.56
Provident Fund Payable 0.09 0.37

(ii) Employee benefits Payable

SIS Payable 0.00 0.00
Sr. Div. Fin. Mgr.Western Railway,A'bad 0.30 0.89
Expense Payable for Rafaleshwar Project 1479.99 0.00
Advance Receivable from GBPRL 506.55 0.89

Total 2052.07 12.50
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Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Ltd.

to C lidated Fi lal Statements for the year ending on March 31, 2024
{Amount in Lakhs)
For the Perlod from  For the Period
Partlculars Aprii 01,2023 to  from Aprii 01, 2022
March 31,2024  to March 31, 2023
27  Revenue from operations
Revenue From Contracts with Customers
Project Management Consultancy Fees 519.88 592.20
Unbilled Revenue Income* 112.98 244.95
Total 632.86 837.15
*Project Management Consultancy Charges accrued from BRCL for the month of March 2024, but will be billed in F.Y
2024-25, hence booked as Unbilled Revenue Income in current vear,
28  Other income
Government Grant Income 32.87 37.30
Interest Recelved 503.04 444,75
Tender Processing Fee o 1.48
Other income 0.08 0.01
Total 535.99 483.54
*Gross Interest earned Rs 1427.63 Lakhs {P.Y 700.46 Lakhs), out of which interest payable to GOG on grant received
from GOG is Rs.924.59 Lakhs {P.Y 255.71 Lakhs). Hence net interest income booked is Rs. 503.04 Lakhs {P.Y 444,75
Lakhs).
29  Employee benefit expense, payment to contractors and cansultants
Salary 151.58 99.28
Security Hire Expenses 4.03 6,47
Staff Welfare Expense 1.24 1,27
Man Power Services 94.12 140.59
Total 250.97 247.61
30 FInance Cost
Interest on Lease Llabilitles (Refer Sch No.40) 1.80 3.37
Total 1.80 3.37
31 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation 32.87 37.30
Amortisation of Right of use asset (Refer Sch No.40) 15.27 15.26
Total as.14 52.56
32 Other expenses
Advertisement Expenses 7.25 60,59
Audit Fees - Internal Audit 1.20 1.20
Audit Fees - Statutory Audit* 1.00 1.00
Books & Periodicals Expense - 0.18
Business Promotion Exp g 4,20 -
Bank Charges 0.01 -
PMC charges 234,19 268.72
Consultancy & Prafesslonal Fees 122.40 180.98
Diwall Gift Expense 0.64 523
Electricity Expenses 5.08 5.90
Feasibility Study Expenses 44,06 149.13
Professional Tax - .
Hotel & Accommodation 0.00 0.27
Insurance Exp. 1.06 0.99
Legal / ROC & Stamp Duty Fees 1.55 3.51
Late Filllng Fees of ITR 0.05 -
Office Exp 10.14 8.87
Printing & Stationary Expenses 1.66 2.40
Rent Expenses 10.90 10.30
Repalrs & Maint. Expenses 10.00 5,53
Reimbursement of Exp to Director 0.80 6.49
Relmbursement of Exp to Others 33.32 2.70
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[ in Lakhs)|
For the Perlod from  For the Perlod
Particulars April 01,2023 to  from Aprll 01, 2022
March 31, 2024  to March 31, 2023
Secretarial Audit Fegs a.¢ 0,60
Software Renewal Charges 4.92 4,54
Stipend Exp 1.99 0.67
Telephone & Internet Exp 1.17 117
Tender Fees 0.08 0.15
Traveling Expenses 28.32 15.20
Vehicle Hire Charges 39.64 55.00
Total 566,33 791.32 |
Other Expenses Includes:
*Auditors Remuneratlon:
Statutory Audit Fees 1.00 1,00
Total Total 1.00 100

Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
There are no component of other comprehensive income that are required or to be disclosed,

33 Earnings per share {‘EPS')
Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit/ {loss} attributable to the equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares of Rs.10 each outstanding during the year which is as under:

Particulars 2023-2024 2022-2023
Net Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity shareholders (1146.64) (21.50)
Weighted Avg. No. of equity shares held during the year* 88577628 76230338

Face value per share in X 10 10
Basic and diluted* Earning Per share {1.29} [0.031]

* There is no potential equity Shares so Basic an¢ Dlluted EPS are Same
34  Equity Commitments :

(1) As per Share Holder Agreement of BRCL, G-RIDE required to contribute Rs 43930 Lakhs into equity share capital
of BRCL out of which Rs. 37154,90 Lakhs has been contributed by G-RIDE in equity share capital of BRCL.

{2) As per Share Holder Agreement of GBPRL, G-RIDE required to contribute Rs 1029 Lakhs into equity share capital
of GBPRL out of which Rs. 1029 Lakhs has been contributed by G-RIDE in equity share capital of GBPRL.

35 1, Share of Profit/{Loss) of Joint Venture SPV BRCL

fictallzrofit/(ocsfattarstay {2653 30) {758 A2)
Less: pre- acquisition Loss - .
Post acquisition Profit/{loss)* [2653.30) 258.62)
Share of Profit or Loss in {%) from 01.04.2023 to 31.07.2023 55,95% .
Share of Profit or Loss in (%) from 01.08.2023 to 16.01,2024 44.55%

Shate of Profil ur Loss in {%]) from 17,01.2024 to 31.03.2024 42.39% '
Share of Profit or Loss in {%) as on 31.03.2023 . 55,4955
Share of Profit/(Loss) of Joint Venture SPV BRCL** Total (a) (1270.82) (144,700

* For consolidatlon purpose only Post Acquisition Profits / {Lass) from Joint Venture are considered.
** Tha company apportioned the total profit / loss of IVs based on the percentage of holding in JVs for respective

period.

2. Share of Profit/(Loss) of Joint Venture SPV GBPRL

Total Profit/(Loss) after tax {363.53) (149.44)
Less: pre- acquisition Loss - 0.00
Post acqulsition Profit/{loss)* [363.53) (149.44)
Share of Profit or Loss in {%) from 01.04.2023 to 29.03.2024 25.70% +
Share of Profit or Loss In (%) from 29.03.2024 10 31.03.2024 26.01% 4
Share of Profit or Loss in (%) as on 31.03.2023 . 25,70%]
Share of Profit/(Loss) of Joint Venture SPV GBPRL Total (b) _[93.43’ !3&-1 lt

* For consolidation purpose only Post Acquisition Profits / {Loss) from Joint Venture are considered.
*+ The company apportioned the total profit / loss of Vs based on the percentage of holding in IVs for respective
period,
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{Amount In Lakhs)
For the Perlod from  For the Period
Particulars April 01,2023 to  from April 01, 2022

March 31,2024  to March 31, 2023

36

37

3. Share of Profit/(Loss) of Joint Ventura SPV GHRL®*

Total Profit/(Loss) after tax {0.05} (1.32)
Less: pre- acquisitlon Lass - o
Post acquisitlon Profit/{loss)* 0,05 1.32
Share of Profit or Loss in (%) 100.00% 100
Share of Profit/{Loss) of Joint Venture SPV GHRL Total ('c) iO.I}S} w

* For cansolldation purpose only Past Acquisition Profits / {Loss) from loint Venture are considered,

Total (a+b+c} (1364.3 (184.42)

SIGNIFICANT ENTERPRISES CONSOLIDATED AS JOINT VENTURE IN ACCORDANCE WITH INDIAN ACCOUNTING
STANDARD 111 ON JOINT ARRANGEMENTS

Name of the Enterprise Country of Proportion of
Incorporation Ownership Interest
Bahucharaji Rall corporation Limited (BRCL) Indla 55,95%]
G-Ride Bedi Port Rall Limited {GBPRL} !India 25.70%
G-Ride Hazira Rall Limited (GHRL) [india 100,%

*Refer Note No 6

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION, AS REQUIRED UNDER SCHEDULE Ill TO THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, OF
ENTERPRISES CONSOLIDATED AS SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATES/ JOINT VENTURES

Net Assets Share in
l.e. Total Assets minus Profit or Loss
Name of the Enterprise Tatal Liabllities
As % of As % of
consolidated | {Amount in Lakhs}) consolidated {Amount in Lakhs)
Net Assets Profit or Loss
Joint Venture (INVESTMENT AS PER THE EQUITY ME!HOB_)_- Indian
Bahucharaji Rall corporation
Limited (BRCL) - Current Year (2.76) (1270.82) 110,83 {1270.82)
Bahucharal Rall corporation
Limited (BRCL) - Previous Year ©32) 144.70) 671.89 (244.70)
G-Ride Bedi Port Rail Limited
GBPRL) - Current Year (020 (93.43) 513 193.43)
G-Ride Bedl Port Rail Limited
. . 5 4
|(GBPRL) - Previous Year 0.08) (3841 178.34 (3842)
G-Ride Hazira Rail Limited {GHRL}-
N ail tmited (GHRLY (0.00). {0.05) 0.00 {0.05)
Current Year
G-Ride Hazira Rail Limited (GHRL)-
Previous Year (0.003) (1.32) 612 (1.32)
Share in other comprehensive Share in total comprehensive
income |
As % of Amount Amount
Name of the Enterpr!:
otthe prise consolidated (InRs.) As % of total (InRs.)
other comprehensive
comprehensive Income
income

loint Venture (INVESTMENT AS PER THE EQUITY METHOD) - Indlan

|Bahucharajl Rall corporation

- - 110; 1270.82,
Limited (BRCL) - Current Year o8y ( }
Bahucharaji Rail corporation
Limited (BRCL) - Prevlous Year

. - 671.89 (144.70)

G-Ride Bedl Port Rail Lim{ted

{GBPRL) - Current Year » = 8.15 {93.43)
G-Ride Bedi Port Rail Limited

. . 2 38,
|GBPRL] - Previous Year 178.34 (38.41)
G-Ride Hazira Rail Limited {GHRL}-
Current Year - . 0.00 {0.05)
G-Ride Hazlra Rall Limited (GHRL}- ™ e

Previous Year

7" Annual Report
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Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Ltd.
Notes to Consolldated Financial Statements for the year ending an March 31, 2024

{Amount in Lakhs)

For the Period from  For the Period
Particulars Aprit 01, 2023 to  from April 01, 2022
March 31,2024  to March 31, 2023

38 Segment Information
In accordance with Ind-As 108, the operating segments used to present segment information are identifled on the|
basis of internal reports used by the Company's Management to allocate resources to the segments and assess their
performance.

The Board of Directors is collectively the Company's 'Chief Operating Decision Maker' or 'CODM’ within the muaning,
of Ind AS 108. The Indicators used for internal reporting purposes may evolve in connection with performance|
assessment measures put in place.

Information sbout geographical areas
The Company do not have any operations in economic environments with different set of risks and returns. Hence, it
is considered to be operating in a single geographical segment.

39 Dues to Micro, Small and Medlum Enterprises
There were no amounts payable to any Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises to whom the company over dues, which|
are outstanding for more than 45 days as at March 31, 2024.

40 Lease Arrangements
The Company has entered into an agreement with Gujarat Udhyog Bhavan Society for obtaining office premlse on
lease for a period of 5 years at monthly rent of Rs. 1.60 Lakhs
The above lease has been accounted by debiting Right of Use - leasehold property and crediting corresponding lease
liability. The value of lease liability has been derived by discounting future [ease payments of 5 years @ 9.5% p.a.

Maturity Analysis of Lease Liabllity

lParticulars Le;::::su Mo;::::;; 12 Total Liability
As at March 31, 2024 9.36 0.00 9.36
As at March 31, 2023 17.44 9.36 26,79
Amount Recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss

Particulars 31-03-2024 31-03-2023
Interest on Lease Liabilities 1.80 3.37
Amortisation of ROU Assats 15.26 15.26
Total 17.06 18.64
Details of Right of Use (ROU) Assets included in Leasehold Property under Schedule of PPE:

|Particulars 31-03-2024 31-03-2023
Opening Carrying Value as at Balance Sheet Date 22.90 38.16
Addition to ROU Assets during the year 0.00 0.00 |
Amortisation of ROU Assets during the year 15.26 15.26

Closing Carrylng Value as at Balance Sheet Date 7.63 22.90
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41 Financlal Aisk Managemant Objectives and Policies
The Company Is exposed to market risk, credit dsk and liquidity risk The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks. The

Company's senior management is supported by Finance Department that advises on finandlal risks and the appropriate fInancial risk governance framewark

for the Company, The Finance department pravides assurance to the Company's senlor management that the Company’s financlal risk activitles sig)
appropriately governed,
(a) Markat Rlsk

Market Risk Is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a finandal instrument will fluctuate because of changes In market prices, Market piesy
comprlses Interest rate risk. The analyses exclude the impact af movements In markst variables on; the carrying values of gratuity and ather pastiethement
obligatlons: provisions; and the non-financial assets and Jlabllitles,
{l} Interest Rate Risk

Interest Rate Risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of 3 financial Instrument will fluctuate because of changes In market interest rates. The

borrowlings of the Company are Interast free and Iherefore not subject to Interest rate risk as deflned in Ind AS 107,

(b) Liquidtty Risk
tiquidity Risk Is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet Its greseot and future cash and collateral obllgations without incuseing unacceptabile

tosses. The Campany's ohjective is to, at all times malntaln optimum levels of liquidity to meet Its cash and collateral requirements, The Company chosely

monltors Its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash system, [t sources of i Ing at an aplti cost,
{I) The table below summarlses the maturlty profile of the Company's financial Hahilltlas based on

_eomtractial undiicounted paymants. (Amount in Lakha) |
As at March 31, 2029 Dn demand Less than 3 months 3t012 months | 1-5 years IMom than 5 Total

Somowings . . . - . .

Trade Pavahle . i = . . o
Other Financlal Uiabillties . 089 1326.11 . . 1327.00
As at March 31, 2023 o0

Morrowings " . . . . -
‘Trade Pavahle o i . i o
Other Financlal Uabllitles 0,01 421 342,28 9,36 a 355.85
(c} Credit Risk
Credit rlsk is the risk that counterparty will not mest its obligations under a financlal Instrument or customer contract, leading to a fAnancial loss. The|
Company Is exposed to credit risk from its operating actlvities (primarlly trade receivables) and from its financing activities, Including deposits with banks and
financlai Institulfons and other financlal Instruments.
(1) Trade Recaivables

All outstanding customer recelvables of the company are regularly monitared. Company has not witnessed any bad debts or long outstanding during the

year. Fur all ing c lvables as on reporting date are less than 6 months. Accordingly, trade les are subject t 1y
low credit risk and has d thatno i of trade raceivables is raquired.

{1} Flnanclal Instruments and Cash Depasit

CredIt risk from balances with bank and financlal insti is by the C s finance department under the supervislon of company's senior

management. Al balances with banks and financlal institutions is subject to low credlt risk due to goad credit ratings assigned to the Company, This belng|
under the supervision of regulatory authorlty.
42 Related Party Disclosurey
(1) Aclated Parties and the nature of relatlonship :
Holding Entlity
1 Gavernment of Gujarat (GOG)
2 Ministry of Rallways (MOR)
Joint Venture
Bahuchara]l Rall Corporation Umited (BRCL)
G-Rlde Bed| Port Rall Limlted (GBPAL)
G-Rlde Hazira Rall Limited (GHAL)

Kay / Director

Smt Mamta Verma, (AS Chalrman (from 29/08/2024)

Shrl S ) Halder Chalrman (from 26/04/2023 to 01/08/2024}
Smt. AvantikaSing Aulakh Managing Director  (from 22/11/2021 to 04/04/2023}
Shrl Gaurang Makwana Managing Dlsector  (from 05/04/2023 to 10/09/2023)
Shrl Sandeep Sagale Managing Olrector  (from 11/09/2023)

Shr! Santash Kumar Director (P&P) {from 19/05/2017 to 16/07/2024)
Shri S, N, Joshi CFO

Dlrector Non-Executive

Shri T K Pandey Dlrector {from 15/07/2021 to 16/05/2023)
Shri Niraj Kumar Director {from 17/05/2023)

Shri Uday Shankar Jha Director (from 09/12/2022 vo 07/03/2024)
Shrl Kalpesh Vithlan| Director (from 20/08/2020)

Shri Sanjay Gupta Dlrector {from 30/11/2021)

Shri Karuna Nidhi Singh, IRTS Director {from 07/03/2024)

Smt. Anklta Christfan Director (from 06/10/2020)
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(1) Transactions with Related Panis [Amount in Lakhs)
Summary of transactions / HoldIng Entlty laint Venture Kay managament persannel and
Malanses with Aelated Partior a8,
Forthe year For tha year For the year Fr the year
Transactlons during the year Ft;\rdl:::hv;:r ::::d F';;'::hv::' : :;:: g ended Myan:h ended N:luuh ended N:,auh ended Malv'ch 3,
g ‘ 31,2004 e | 3,704 w5 |
Lean given 0.00 14491.57 3000 00 aao
\oan Received Back 0.00 - 14491.57 3p00.00 0.00 '
Hepm, of o aaqo 24 44 0.60 842
Remunrration/ Salary 0.00 . 88 40 294
Tendetr Foes payable to GBPRL oao 025
Interest Expense 924,59 255.71
Interest income 000 264 85
Investmont in Shares 152353 327647 1163 38 1232052
Share App*at-an Maary ¢ oue 000 5100
Grant from GOG 12000.00 21200.00
Grantpaid to Project SPY 11000.00
Equity In form of Land 000 800.00 .
Bld Processing Fees Collected &
traner 0.00 . naz 0.08
Faos for Praject Buvelopmant
services & Project Management
Consultancy Fem AGD AR TA4.05 -
(Armpuat in Lakhs)
Balanee as ot year end Holdlng Entity Joint Venture Key managemant petsonnel and
fellives
Fort the year ended |For the yaar ended For the year For the year For the year For the year
March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023 ended March  |ended Mareh  [endad March | andded March 31,
|— - — AL 1R S— 2023
Amount Roeslvabl - 112.54 22046
Amount Payabile 924.59 155,71 506 55
43 Falt Value Measurements {Amount in Lakhs)
Sut ouk brlow, it 3 compariion by class of tha carrying amounts and lalr value of the Coinpany’s Hnancial inyliumenty
Catagary As at March 31, 2024 At a1 March 31, 2023
Carrying Value | Falr Value Catzylng Value  |Fale Value
1) Flnanclal assets at Amortlzed Cost
Investments {current / non current) 35639.94 35639.94 35840.86 35840.86
Teade exceivabiey {current / non current) 202.80 202,80 363.13 363,13
Cash and Cash equivalents 3622.56 3622.56 1705,99 1705.99
Othae Baldnges with bank 16625.85 16625,85 25059.22 25059.22
Othne financial asset (current / non current) 23533 235.33 267.96 267.96
Total 56326.48 56326.48 63237.16 6323716
2) Financiaf Llabllitles at Amortized Cost
Other financial lisbllitles {current/non current) 1327.00 1327.00 355 8% 355 85
Tatal 1727.00 1327.00 155.85 35% 85

The falr value of the financtal assets and llabllitles is Included at the amount at which the Instrument could be exchanged In a current ransdetiun birtwem)
willing parties, uther than In a foreed or liquidation sale, has d that trade r cash and cash equivalents, other financial ayvets,
trade payables and ather financial liabllitles approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturltias of these Instruments

Fair Value Hlerarchy
All financial instruments for which fair value is recognlsed or disclosed are categorlsed within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
{lowest level input that Is significant to the fair value measurement as a whale

Level 1; Duoted {unadjusted) prices In active markets for identical assets or llablllties.
Level 2: Valuation technlques for which the lawest level Inpul that has a significant effect an the fair value measurement are observable, elther directly o
Indirectly.
Lavel 3: Valuation techniques for which the (owest level input that has 3 significant effect on the fair value measurement is not based on observable market
data.

The fallawing table gravides (he Fair value merusemant bieraighy of the C

' as4ats and liabilities.
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uantitative disclosures falr valus messurement hierarehy for assets as al March 3 1, 2024:
Total [Corrylng  [Cuoted Prige bn [ Sgnifieant
(Valun)
Paniculars
astete at (04
tavestmenta 35639.94
Teade recelvables 202,80 . . .
Cash and Cash equivalents 3622,56 . . .
Other Balances with bank 16625 85 - - .
(Other financlal asset (cureant/non currant) 235,33 . .
Total 56326.48 . * .
Quantitative dischasures lair value mossurement hierarchy for Habilitine s at March 31, 2024: {Amaunt in Lakhs]
Yol (Carrylng Luu:« Priceln  [Rmificont I:::um
Value] Actvm Markets  |obsarvable Inputs |unobservable Inputs
Partlculars Level 1) evrl 1) 13]
Hnancial Uabilitles measured at amortised cast
@ther financial Uabilivtes{current/non cusreni) 1321.00 o & -
Total 1321.00 - - -
Quantitative disclotutes lalr value meatwrement hlerarchy for asvets as at Macch 33, 2023; {Asnaunt In Lakhs)
Total (Cavrying  [Guoted Pricaln  [Significant Significant
Value) Activm Maskats  [obsarvable Inputs |unobsesvabla inputy)
{Particulars 111 ]_g_u_m [nmjll
Financial assers measured at amerthied cost
Investments 35840.86 g . o
frado receivables 363.13 .
Ca1h and Cash equivalents 1705.99
Other Ainancial astot (current/non curren) 267.96 . . .
Total 63237.16 . -
Cuantiistive dhclosures falt value meawrement ¥ for Habilitios as at March 31, 2023 {Amount In Lakhs)
Total {Carrylng  [Quoted Price in Hgnifican)
(Value) Markali nhmvmnlnpuu wnebiarvable Inputs
Parilgulary 12) evelyy |
Financial Uablitties measured at amortlsad cost
Other financlat Uabiktiestcurrent/non current) 355.85 . + .
Yolaf 35588 - - -

44 DETAILS OF LOANS GIVEN, INVESTMENTS MADE AND GUARANTEE GIVEN COVERED U/S 186 {4) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013,
Laans glven and Investments made are given under the respective heads, ( Refer, Nate No, 6 & 12 respectively)

45 Note an Project Management Consultancy to BACL
GRIDE i5 appointed by BRCL as Project Ca for of project of Xatosan Road — Becharajl ~Chanasma — Ranu| Including &45H
slding at the vaiue of 10% of the project cost as approved In the 1* meeting of Board of Director of BRCL held on 09.01,2019, Contract agreement has been
executed as on 28,08.2020 for the same.

The PMC charges shall be kept at Orlglnal Estimatad Cost, which Is Rs 45260 Lakhs, in lwo phases for clalming total PMC charges Rs 4526 Lakhs, Phauo wits)
PNIC ehanges are as under:

|i)Kstorsn Road to Becharall inc) MSIL Siding {Phare-t) 1982 Lakhs
|mnemuu to Ranu) {Phawusd)) 2544 Lakhs
|totsl sanctioned PMC chirge 4526 Lakhs

Revlsed project cost (Phase wise) & PMC charges has been approved in 15th Board Meeting of GRIDE held on 20.08.2020.

As per contract executed with Gride on August 28, 2020 the detalls of stage wise PMC charges payable to GRIDE as under:

(Amgnant i Lakia) _’
Sr. Sanclionad PMC Charges for | Stage-wlise PMC Charges for Phase-l,
Stages of PMC
No Phase-| Including Taxes
1| Transaclion Advisory {30% of sanctioned charges for Phase-1) 594.6
2 |Froject B [45% al i charges for Phase-l) 1982 891.9
3|Commissloning & Testing (25% of sanctloned charges for Phase-l) 4955
(Amount In Lakhs)
Sr. Stages of PMC Sanctioned PMC Charges for Stage-wlise PMC Charges for Phase-
No Phasa-ll Il, Including Taxas
1| Transaction Advisory {30% of sanctioned charges for Phase-il) 763.2
2|Profect Management {45% of sanctioned charges for Phase-l|} 2544 1144,8
3|Commissioning & Testing {25% of sanctioned charges for Phase-1) 636.0
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Guijarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporatlon Ltd.

Koted to Contolidated Flasnelal Statemants for tha year ending on March 13, 2024
Dillleig Status 33 on 3L.03.2024

{Armbount i Lakha)|
:‘: Stages of PMC Amaunt centified Including GST il Ralued

1 T ) dvisory [30% of loned charges lor Phase-l} 59460
2 I Advivory [20% of wanctioned charges far Phase-0) 763.20
3 Prajact {45% ol d chargas for Phase-|) (PMC Chargas @

8,912 Crore far Rs 263.52 Crore*
» 1PC-01 to IPC 41 26352.00 891,90
q froject {45% of charges tor Phase-I1) {PMC Charges @

11.448 Crare for Rs 333.625 Crore*

FPC-01 to IPC 22 28402.55
o 93146
b VFC-23/ 24425 136287 36.14

Total nill Ralsed up to March 31, 2024 321730

J ynder;
Total PMC charges for the work 191.83 (Escludding GST & 16M)
PMC Charges Incurred till March'24 191 83 [Excluding 65T @ 18%)

46  Nota on Project Management Consultancy ta GBPRL

GRIDE is appolnted by GBPAL as Project Management Consultant (or the project of G-Rlde Bedi Port Rall fimited (GBPAL) at the value of 10% of the project
cost as approved In the 3rd mesting of Board of Director of GAPRL held on 21 03 2022 Contract agreement has been executed as on 25.03.2022 for the
same,

Project Management Cansultant {PMC} for this project at charges @ 10 00% of the basic cost of project {As. 5240 Lakhs} {excluding cost of land) i e, Rs, 54|
Lakhs broadly classified Into belaw three categaries

a) Transaction Advisory: 3% of the total baslc cost of project
b) Project Management: 4.5% of the total basic cost of project
c) Commissioning & Testing: 2.5% of the basic cost of project

As approved in 20th Board Meeting of GRIDE, the detalls of stage wise PMC charges receivable from GBPRL Project are as under.

LAinaunt in Lakhy)
Sr. Stages of PMC d PMC Charges for Stage-wlise PMC Charges for project,
Na praject including Taxkes
3] Transaction Advisory (3% of sanctloned charges} 157.7
2|Project i (45% of ioned charges}) 5240 2358
3| Commissioning & Testing (25%of sanctioned charges) 1310
Miling Chabyse 84 an 2103 3024
{Amount in Lakhs)
Sr. Stages of PMC Amount e tied ncluding GST Bill Ralsed
No
1 y (3056 of i charges ) 157.20
2 Praject {45% of charges } [PMC Charges @ 2.358 Crore
a IPC-01 at 16/10/2021 467.77 23.89
b IPC-02 at 02/11/2021 426.35 21.77]
(4 JPC-03 at 06/12/2021 1442.44 73.67
|d__ [rpc-0a at 18/01/2022 765.57 39 104
8 JPC-DS at 29/01/2022 259.19] 13.24
JPC-06 at 23/03/2022 789.86 40.34
|g__|ipC-07 at 18/05/2022 173.95) 8.88|
h 1PC-08 at 18/10/2022 307.52 1491
Blll Ralsed up to 315t March, 2024 4632.64 235.80
3 |commissioning & Testing [25% of sanctioned charges) | 131,00|

|l'otal Bill Ralsed up to 31st March, 20249 (1+243) [ 524,00|
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AT Nata nn 0 GOPAL snd Interest trocived fram GRARL

P-_@muhm[
Partcwlar J0¥Ea 223

Opening halanie of nan

[T -

1449130 -

L] -

[Total interent pald fo GRBE #41 Rales for 0O 1485 .

48 Note for Government Grant Recelved for Project SPV & Praposed SPY
The company has recelved grant of fis, 17200 Lakhs for its Project SPV & Proposed Project SPV in Financial Year 2022-23_ The same has been transferred to
Proect SPV in tha next inanclal year 2023-24,

Graon Status fe Finanzsl Yoor 202273
Amount of Grany _ [Profast 57y Amount Ut
1. Developmant of GCT Tevmingl ot [Re 6000 Labhs G- Ry Bedi Port ksl Limited Amount Transferred to Project SPY

i
+. Development af GCT Terminal a1 A 11200 (akhs Propened WV .
b,

Geand $1atws for Finamdal Yanr 2022:24

et Name Amaunt of Grant A SPY Aumon e
1. urvetapsment of GIT Tenminal ac | 5000 Lakhy |G-Ride Bed! Post fiall Limbied Amount Transferred ta Praject $PY
& Develogirant of GCT Teeminal st [ia. 6000 Lakin (- Hido 0 agn )| Outol Ay 17200 Lakhy #s 1000820 Lakhg has Been
[ Moy, Aalaleshwat Limited b incovpurated on 17/05/004 s during e carmeit financial year,

Note: During the current linanclal year G-Rlde has received Rs 3000 takhs general grant out of Rs 607 53 Lakhs spent during 1he year & balance of Rs
392,47 Lakihs which will be utilied in next financlal year

49 Impact an previous year flgures in Flnancial Slatements due to Re-grauping:
Durlng the earlier finantial years company has Ineurred feasiblly study expense of of s, 27 30 Lakhs for PM Gali Shakli rafaleshwar Project, During the
Flnancial year 2024-25 for that project company has been incarporated in the name of G Ride Gatl Shakil Cargo Terminal {Morbi) Limited accordingly we wilt
recaver thal expense with mark up once the approval of the both the company's board Is accerded.

50 The Code on Sorial Securlty, 2020 {‘Code'} has been natified In the Ofilclal Gazette of Indla on 22th September, 2020 which could impact the contribuilans of
the Company towards certain employment benefits. The elfective date from which changes are applicable Is yet to be notlfied and the rules are yel to be
framed. Impact, If any, of the change wil) be assessed and In the perlod of of the relevant

51 Other statutory Informalton

i} The Cemgatny has nat traded or invesied In Erypto Currency or Virteal Curcency durlng the Feancial year.
if) Mo procesdiogs have heea knltiated o mw wmiding against the Campany lor holding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions {Prohthlllon}
Acl 1308 (4% of 1950 dnd su'es made thermunder,
) The Company has not advanced or leaned or Invested funds to any other personts) ar entitylies), including forelgn emtitizs (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall:

{a} directly or Indlractly lend or invest In other persons or entities Ident(fled In any manner whalsoever by or on behall of the Campany {uitimare
beneficlarles) or

{b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or an behalf of the ultimate beneficlaries
I} The Campany has not recelved any fund from 41ty person|s) or enlltylies), Including forelgn entitles (funding party) with the understonding (whether
recorded by writing or otherwise) that the Cumpaiy shalk:

{a) directly o indlrectly lend r invest in other persans or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party fultimate
beneticlaries) or

{b) provide any guarantee, security or the llke on hehalf of Lhe ultimale benefldarles "
v) The Company does nat have any such transacilon which is not recorded In the books of accaunts that has been sirrendeced or disclosed as incoma
during the year in the tax assessments under the Incaime Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search of survey or any ather relevant provisions of the income Tax Act,
1%61).
vi) The Campany has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87} of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on
number of Liyers) Rules, 2017,
vllj The Campany does uot have any transactions wih companles which are struck aff.
i) The Campunvy has bean maintaining Vs beoks ol sceounts bt the Taly Frime whizh b beatute of recording audit trall of cach and wery transacdon,
creating an edit log of each change made o kooks of sccourt slong with the date whed tweh thanges wers made snd kg that the sudil teall cannot be
dhuabiled, thrgughout Bie yesr s reqibred by provo 10 sals side (1] of fule 3 of The Companios {Arvounts] Nutes, 2018 knawn 53 the Carmpanles |Accounts)

52 The Company has not entared with any Scheme(s) of arrangement In terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companles Act, 2013

51 As pir the Sectlon 203(1) of Companies Act, 2013 fead with Rule & of the Companies and of i } Aides 214!
which raquirnil appointment af Key Managerial Furzonned (KMP), The wempany has Aot appeinted full tlme Qualified Company Secrutary (4] the date of
report However, the company has availed services of Practicing Company Secretary

54 Copltal commltments :
There Is no contracts remaining to be executed an capital accaunt hence there s no capltal commitment outstanding as an balance sheet date,

Slgnatorbes o Hote L to 58

As per ou¢ report of even date. For and an behall of the Board of Directors
For Kaptilal Paiel & Co

Chartered Atcguntan

oo Miewetos Maniging Brector
DIN: 09043461 DN 05002794

UoIn:

2holqa20

Place: Ahmedabad
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